HSn pSeds o bl aday gBasiosn
Gafiu Osreiamssst wWPRD CUTHMTETT SIEIAKIEST DMES
Ministry of National Policies and Economic Affairs

-

ual Repantif =

L I W N | R |2
;' ' £
e

e e
SRR AT B
a [
i

M o il
(3] I

8D Sginaded o6 46lcd 8dldgn
eafiuy pdsems Qurmiy Hws Feu
Employees’ Trust Fund Board




Ministry of National Policies and Economic Affairs

EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
1stFloor, Labour Secretariat,
Colombo 5.
Tele: 0112531704

Fax: 011-2503917
E-mail: demadminetfb@shtnetlk
Wehb: wwnwetfhb. Ik




Page Numbers

Corporate Profile

Board of Directors & Senior Management

Our Vision, Mission & Values

Financial Highlights

tilestone from 1981 to 2015

Organization Review

Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Message

Report of the Board of Directors

Financial Statement 2015

Motes to the Financial Statemenits

Auditor General’s Report 2015

Comments with regard

to the Auditor General

Statistical Annexures

210

211-213

214
215

216-217

218
219-221
222

223-229

230-238
239-261
262-278

279-294
295-289




CORPORATE PROFILE

The Employees’ Trust Fund was established on 1st March 1981 under the provisions of
Employees’ Trust Fund Act No. 46 of 1980. The Fund is administrated by the Employees’ Trust
FundBoard and at present the ETF Board is functioning under the Ministry of National Policies
and Economic Affairs. The provisions of the Act shall apply to every state & private sector
undertaking belonging to any class or category of state or private sector undertaking as is
specified in an order made by the Hon. Minister and published in the Gazette. Self-employed
persons and migrant workers also could contribute to the Fund on their own and obtain
membership. At present the active membership of the fund is approximately 2.4 Million and
covered by 76,674 employers. The value of the members fund was about Rs. 218.5 Billion as
at 31st December 2015. To decentralize the ETFB activities and to provide a better service to
its members the ETFB introduced a Branch Network in 1995.

The Ohjectives of the Board

{a) to promote employee ownership, employee welfare, economic democracy
through participation in financing and investment;

b} to promote the employee participation in management through the acquisition of
equity interest in enterprises,

{ch to provide for non-contributory benefit to employees on retirement; and

{d} to do all such other acts or things as may be necessary for, the ohjectives specified in
paragraphs (a}, (b} and (c) above.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Employees’ Trust Fund as at the end of 2014 was as follows:

Mr. Mahinda Madihahewa

Chairman/CED
Appointed by the Minister of
Maticnal Policies and Economie Affairs

Mr. P B Madagedara

Working Director
Appointed by the Minister of
Maticnal Policies and Econemic Affairs

Mr. Nihal Fonseka

Director
Appointed by the Minister of
Mational Policies and Economic Affairs

Mr. K S Kurukulasinghe

Director
Appointed by the Minister of
Maticnal Policies and Econemie Affairs

Mrs. Champa Balasooriya

Directar
Appointed by Minister of Finanee

Mprs. Shietha Senaratne

Director
Trade Ministry Representative

MrCL KPlayasooriya

Director
Representative of Employers' Federation of Ceylon

Mr. P Ranawakaarachchi

Director
Trade Union Representative

Employees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015




SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGERS

|
Mrs. RN Gnanasekera Mr. W § Dissanayake
{Investmenit}) {Member Services)

Mr. L H Nihal Mr. K S Weliwita
{Administration & Human Resources) {Internal Audit}

Mr. N W Wimalaweera Mr. W Sooriyaarachchi
{Finance) {Collection & Employer Relations)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGERS

Mr. C Mallikarachchi Mr. H M Seneviratne
{Member Accounts) {Member Services)

D &
Mr. M S Dissanayake Mr . M A K Aluthgamage
{Self Employmenit) {Finance)

=
Ms. HAY R Fernando Mr. A1 M 5 layasundara
{Contribution Collection) {Enforcement - Region ii}
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - 2015

Rs. 218.5Bn — Rs. 222.5Bn
MEMBER FUND TOTAL ASSETS

11%
RETURN ON
EGUITY
INVESTMENT

r:.18.04 Bn
INTERESTE DIVIDEND

INVESTMENT
INCOME

FINANCIAL REVIEW
The ETFB, which accounted for about 1.65 percent of the assets of the Financial Sector, with
its increase in net contribution.

Investment Income grew by Rs.1.0 billion to Rs.19.5 billon in 2015 when compared to
Rs.18.5 killion in 2014. Profit before tax increase to Rs.18.1 billion from Rs.17.2 billion in
2014,

The ETFB had a total asset value of Rs.223 billion as at end of December 2015, and has about
12.5 million accounts, of which, about 2.4 million are active. The ETFB had 76,674
employers contributing to the fund as at 31st December 2015. Total Contribution increased
to Rs.18.1 billion in 2015 from Rs.15.9 billion in 2014 while refunds made to members
decreased to Rs.11.5 billion in 2015 from Rs.13.9 billionin 2014.

The net contribution in year 2015 was Rs. 6.6 billion where as it was Rs.2 billion in year 2014.
It is an increase of Rs.4.6 billion when compared to year 2014. The total assets own by
Employees’ Trust Fund Board and it is an increase of 11.8%. The members fund in the ETFB
increased to Rs.218.5 billion in 2015 from 193.9 billion in 2014.
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MILESTONES FROM

1981 TO 2015

1986

Death Benefit Scheme :
Rs.100,000/=

1989

Death Benefit Scheme :
Permanent Disability Scheme :
Rs.200,000/=

1991

Death Benefit Scheme -

Permanent Disakility Scheme :

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery:
Rs.300,000/=

1992

Death Benefit scheme -

Permanent Disakility Scheme -

Heart Surgery Scheme :

Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens :
Rs. 18,000/=
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1994

Death Benefit Scheme

Permanent Disakility Scheme

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-oeular lens
Year 5 Scholarship

Rs.15,000/= - 7,000 Scholarships

1997

Death Benefit Scheme

Permanent Disability Scheme

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery

Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens

Year § Seholarship

“Shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization Scheme
Rs.25,000/= per year upto maximum of Rs.50,000
during the entire service period

2002

Desth Benefit Scheme

Permanent Disakility Scheme

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery

Reimbursement of Intra-oeular lens

Y¥ear § Seholarship

“Shramasiwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization Seheme
“Viyana" Low Interest Housing Loan Scheme

2006

Death Benefit Scheme

Permanent Disakility Scheme

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens

Year 5 Seholarship

“ShramasUwa Rekawarana” Heospitalization Seheme
"Wiyana" Housing Loan Scheme

Financial Assistance from Kidney Transplant Surgery Rs.300,000/=

2010

Desth Benefit Scheme

Permanent Disakility Scheme

Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery
Reimbursement of Intra-ocular lens

Year 5 Seholarship

“Shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization Scheme
“Wiyana" Housing Loan Scheme

Financial Assistant from Kidney Transglant Surgery
Year 5 Scholarship Rs.15,000/=

{ETF members who had to terminate
employment due to permanent disability)
Financial Grant for GCE (A/L) Students- Rs.12,000/=
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ORGANIZATION REVIEW

The Employees’ Trust Fund was established by the Act No. 46 of 1980 Commenced operations
in KMarch 1981.

The Employees’ Trust Fund Board (ETFB) at present has a conventional organization structure
geared to play the role of a Trustee and a Fund Manager and it is the intention of the
Management to drive the Organization to be & more vibrant financial organization in the
future. The Act does not specify about the organization structure. However, under section 5,
it is stated that the Board may formulate rules for the conduct of its operations.

The overall responsibility of the Management for the activities of the Fund lies with its Board
of Directors. The Board comprises of nine members of which four are appointed by the
relevant Minister and one member each nominated by the Ministers in charge of the subjects
of Finance and Trade, One member nominated by the Employers Federation of Ceylon and
two members by Trade Unions having more than 100,000 members each.

The Chairman of the Board is selected at the discretion of the Minister in charge and he isalso
the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the Trust Fund as provided by the Act.

The ETFE was initially structured as a centralized organization, mainly due to the fact that the
majority of Employers were concentrated in the Western Province. After completion of
restructuring programme of Regional Office network with the opening of Regional Offices and
District Offices in most potential areas, a rapid development took place in the Enforcement
and Legal activifes. Subseguently most of Member Services activities such as claims
acceptance, claims payments, member awareness programs etc were decentralized.

The functional areas of ETFB can be broadly divided into Operations and Support Services.
The operational areas are identified as Collection & Employer Relations, Member Services
and Investments. The Administration and Human Resources, Finance, IT and Internal Audit
functions have been recognized as support services.

As specified by the Act, the Chairman is empowered to perform duties as Chief Executive
Officer {CEQ) of the organization. The General Manager and Additional General Manager will
function under the direct supervision of CEQ. Each functional area is headed by a Deputy
General Manager (DGM). The position of Working Director been established to assist
Chairman/ CEO.

Accordingly, 3 comprehensive organization structure has been developed to ensure the
smooth functioning of the organization.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Philosophy of Corporate Governance is institutionalized at all levels in ETF Board by
establishing a strong set of corporate values, awritten procedure and policies and a Board
who lead by example.

The Board of Directors of ETF Board is committed and takes responsibility to maintain the
highest standards of Corporate Governance. The Board corporate governance practices
ensures that the Board delivers promised value to all its stakeholders. The Corporate
Governance philosophy of the Board practiced to the focusing in compliance with the
following:

1. ETF Act No. 46 of 1980

2. Public Enterprises Guideline for pood governance by the Department of Public
Enterprises

3. The Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance by the Department of Public
Enterprises

4. 5ri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standard Monitoring Board Act.

5. Procedure Manual and Policies of the Board

Director Board

The Board is headed by a Director Board who are responsible in the stewardship of the
enterprise on behalf of the Government and its stakeholders.

Board compasition

The Board comprises of Mine Directors including:

. Four members nominated by the Minister

] Cne member nominated by the Minister in charge of the subject of Finance

. Cne member nominated by the Minister in charge of the subject of Trade

] Cne member nominated by the Employer Federation of Ceylon; and

. Two members nominated by the Minister in consultation with the executive of

every Trade Union having more than 100,000 members.

The Corporate Governance practices are initiated at all levels in Employees” Trust Fund Board
through its Vision, Mission, Corporate Values, Corporate Goals and Objectives and by
written procedure and policies in Financial Administration, Investments, Procurements etc.
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Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible to ensure that the ETF Board is conducted its affairs
efficiently and effectively in line with Government Policies. This need to achieve whilst
protecting resources, maintaining proper accounts, ensuring that accurate reports are
maintained and all statutory and other regulatory requirements relating to management are
complied with.

The Board ensures the strategic direction of the Enterprises are in place and lead the
Institution for the achievement of strategic goals. The Board regularly oversee that an effec-
tive system of internal controls and risk management is in place, management functions of
the institution are effectively operating, Resources and assets are utilized effectively. The
Board assesses the performance of the GW and the Senior Management Staff annually and
provides sufficient reporting’s to stakeholders on financial aspects and disclosures necessary
such other on a regular basis. The responsibility of appointing the Audit and Management
Committee and Investment Committee rests with the Board. The Board ensures that all the
Board proceedings are in conformity with relevant statues, guidelines, circulars ect. by the
Government while avoiding any conflict of interest. The Board also seek to ensure that good
governance framework is in place to promote transparency, fairness and accountability
within the entity.

Appointment to the Board
Members of the Board and the Chairman of the Board are appointed as stipulated in the Act.

The Duties, rights and responsibiliies of Board Members are specified in a letter of
appointment signed by the appointing authority and accepted by the Board Members.

Chairman

The Chairman is supposed to provide clear and distinct leadership to the Board. The
Chairman roles as the important link in the entire governance structure and lead the
enterprise in the right direction as the Chief Executive Officer. The chairman ensures the
prevalence of Corporate Governance, equal treatment for all directors, a clear division of
responsibilities and facilitates balance of power and authority. He chairs all the Board
hWeetings ensuring that proper proceedings are followed at the meeting. He plays a
supervisory role rendering maximum input in  his specialized areas of knowledge while
refraining from engaging in operational activiies. He also encourages all directors to pay a
proactive role in managing the enterprise.
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Board Secretary

All members of the Board have access to the advice and services of the professionally
qualified Corporate Secretary who is responsible to the Board for advising the Board on
compliance with Board procedures, the law and relevant rules and regulations, and for
ensuring that reliable and relevant information is provided to the Board in a2 timely manner.
The Secretary ensures that procedures governing Board Meetings are followed and effective
functioning of the Board while circulating Board Papers timely. He provides guidance on the
responsibilities, rules and regulations impacting the operations of the Board and advice and
assist all Board Members.

General Manager and the Senior Management.

The responsibility  for the Management of the operations of the Enterprise lies with the
General Manager and the Senior Management. They are responsible for the effective
implementation of decisions taken bythe Board of Director’s . The General Manager and the
Senior Management team provide information and necessary clarifications to the Board to
enable well considered decision. They formulate operational plans and budgets and
maintain systems, procedures and controls towards effective management of the enterprise
while achieving the Board Objectives and Goals.

Financial Reporting.

Board is responsible for the preparation of Annual Financial Statements including true and
fair view of its position and performance annually. The preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements are in line with the S Lanka Financial Reporting Standards.  Full
disclosure and transparency is enforced within the enterprise to provide the Board of
Directors, the General Manager and Senior Management with timely and reliable
information required by them to fulfill their responsibilities effectively.

Annual Audit
The Annual Audit of the Board is conducted by the Auditor General. The External Auditor is

precluded from providing consultancy or any other services to the company that might
compromise its impartiality and independent judgment on its audit of the enterprise.

Board Committees

Certain functions of the Board have been delegated to Board Committees.
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CHAIRMAN'’S MESSAGE

Employees” Trust Fund Board, one of the largest social security Funds available for masses of working people
which is only second to the Employess’ Provident Fund.

This fund was established on D1stMarch 1981 for Private and Semi Government Employess. There are 10 bene-
fit schemes are operating in focusing education, health and housing for the members In addition to the
paymient of interest and dividends. The'member are able to fulfill many essential needs out of these benefits
and this fund had grown further a= a unigue fund that provides benefits for the dependants of the members.

Inyear 2015, restructuring programme of the institution was commenced in order to increase the member fund
and provide efficient and effective service to the members. Accordingly, 05 special units were established to
address number of issues that had been continued from a long period. Spedial Investigation Unit (5IU} for
contribution collection and promotion, Customer Care Unit (CCU} called “Sahana Piyasa”™ to provide timely and
effective service for the members were set up.

Asolutionwas given fora major issue by settling up a Member Accounts updating unitin order to update some
of member accounts that had not been entered to the system since 1981,

It i= a2 milestone that establishing of Planning, Research and Development Unit (PRD} for planning of future
affairs of the Board proper manner and statistics Division for analyzing statistics in order to perform planning
work effectively.

It waz planned to inskall 3 modern computer system  with financial  assistance’ of Information and
Communication Technology Agency (ICTA} in order to re-engineer Issues and limitations that are remaining in
the present computer system which are older than 15years.

In focusing of accelerating field inspection: work to increase the coverage of contribution collection; initiatives
have been taken to start ETF Inspection Systern Application  (EISA} project with technical  assistance of
International Labour Organization (ILO}

It is great pleasure for me to initiate |ocal and foreign training programs for the staff after identifying the
impotence of human resource development. Further the produchvity development concepts which already
introduced in every sections will iImprove the efficiency and guality of the service provide tothe public.

Inyear 2015, we had 2.5 million contributing membership covering 76,674 Employers. The fund also grew upto
Rs.218.5 hillion. listremendous to record 14.1% growth in contribution collection over the previous year. For
theyear 2015, itwas able to earn net profit of E=.18,034 million which is an Increase by B=.552 milllon when
compared to the Budget estimates.

The team work, commitment to work with determination of the eptire staff of the Board drives towards the
achievement of this progress while solving problems. The dedicated commitment displayed by staff is
commendable and Iwish to convey my sincere thanks to them.

Wahinda Madihahewa
Chairman/Chief Executive Officer
Employees” Trust Fund Board




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
YEAR 2015

The Board of Directors of the Employees' Trust Fund Board takes pleasure in presenting to
all its members the Annual Report and audited Financial Statements for the year 2014.

The Employees’ Trust Fund Board which is functioning under the Ministry of National
Policies and Economic Affairs was established under ETF Act No.46 of 1980 and commenced
its operations on 1st March, 1981. The Board has by now completed 34 years of service to all
members.

Main Achievements during the year

The Board recorded considerable progress and had many significant achievements during
the year 2015. Some achievements are highlighted below.

T The total Contributions from employers for the year was Rs. 18 Billion which
was an increase of Rs.2.1 Billion than the previous year.

2. The total Investment income was Rs.19.5 Billion during the year compared to
Rs.18.4 Billion in 2014 showing an increase of Rs.1.0 Billion while the value
of the investment portfolio increased from Rs.186 Billion to 210 Billion at the
end of the year.

3. The Board earned a net profit of Rs.18.0 Billion compared to Rs. 17.1 Billion
in the previous year while Rs. 18.0 Billion was distributed to members at the
end of the year as interest and dividends.

4. The total net asset value of the Fund exceeded Rs. 223 Billion at the end of
the year.
B Board was able to declare a total rate of 9% to its members as interest and

dividend for 2015. {See Graphs 1 & 2} This was an attractive rate compared to
the rates offered by Banks/Financial Institutions to its customers.

&. The operating expenses of the Fund which was 5.15% in 2014 increased to
E.8% during the year 2015. However, the Board has maintained the
operating expenditure level as expected. (See Graph 3)

7. The Regional office network continued to function effectively during the year
with special attention focused on recovering of outstanding contributions and
surcharges and legal dues.
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10.

1

12.

13.

14.

15.

The decentralized claims payment programme is continued with Ampara,
kKandy, Matara, Badulla and Kurunegala Regional Offices successfully and
payment of express claims also stated in Kandy and Kurunegala Regional
Offices.

In addition tothe monthly contribution payments made by cheque at Head
Office by employers, payment could also be made through our Regional
Office network and at our Collection Office at Bank of Ceylon, City Office.

As a result of awareness programs conducted for employers, an encouraging
progress have by Jaffna Regional Office which was established in year 2010
by maintaining average monthly contribution collection close to 10 million
and 1600 employers.

At present nearly 3266 employers are making their contribution payments
through internet banking which is close to 37% of total contribution.

Awareness programs have been conducted in 05 districts.

Under the enrolment programme of self employed persons during 2015, it
was able to enroll daily farmers in coordination with MILCO and small scale
leather product procedures who were trained in Industrial Development
Board.

In addition tothis action will be taken to enroll draftsmen, horticulture
producers, omamentals fish producers, pre-school teachers, entrepreneurs in
contractors, industry Bus owners, Drivers and conductors and Three Wheel
Drivers etc and it was able to increase membership and member contribution
for year 2015 to 39,099 and Rs.43 million respectively.

High priority is given to human resource development and action has been
taken to improve capacity, attitudes, and knowledge by conducting work
shops, seminars, training programs etc for various level of staff members.
Further union members of the staff were given training for their respective
fields. During this year the top management were given opportunity to get
foreign training exposure.

The Industrial relations between the Management and Trade Unions
continued to be cordial and healthy while such relationships greatly assisted

in the progress made by the Board in all functional areas during the year.

The Principal activities of the Board continued as follows during 2013,
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Principal Activities
Employer Contributions and Members Accounts

The Contribution Collection Section is responsible for collection of employer contributions
and effective/timely banking of such contributions. Similarly the Member Accounts Section is
responsible for updating individual member accounts and issuing of Annual Member
Statements to members.

In order to provide an effective and efficient service to members the, Employers who
contribute to the Fund have been categorized as larger category and smaller category
employers. Larger category employers have more than 15 employees while smaller category
employers have less than 15 employees.

A total of 8,607 new employers commenced contributing to the Fund during the year 2015
and thus the total number of employers contributing to the Fund at the end of the year 2015
had increased to 76,674,  Similarly the total contributions received from the employers in
respect of their employees during 2015 was Rs. 18.0 Billion compared to Rs. 15.9 Billion in
2014. (See Graph 4) Further, the value of the Member’s Fund increased from Rs. 193.8 Billion
to Rs.218.5 Billion at the end of the year under review. (See Graph 5}

Member Benefits and Welfare Benefits

The Claims Sectionis responsible for the acceptance of refund and benefit claims and speedily
processing and paying of such claims to the members.

Additionally the Member Services Section is responsible for providing information to the
members regarding their rights and benefits from the Fund. It also provides awareness to
Employers of their responsibility in making timely remittances of contributions on behalf of
their memkbers. Such work is carried out frequently by organizing various awareness
programs at the requests of instftutions, trade unions, professional associations and also by
educating the public at various forums.

During 2015, 162,983 refund claims were processed and the total amount paid was Rs. 11.6
Billion. Comparatively during 2014, 183,928 Claims were processed and the value was Rs.14
Billion. During the year the average amount paid per claim decreased to Rs.71,421 from Rs
76,496 in the previous year. (See Graph 6). During 2015, 3,421 benefit claims were processed
and the total amount paid was Rs.209 Million. Comparatively during 2014, 3,974 claims were
processed and the value was Rs.180 Million. Rs.116 Million was deposited in People’s Bank in
year 2015 on behalf of the 7,440 children of members who had passed the Year Five
Scholarship Examination.
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Rs.20.6 Million had been paid to 1,781 Children of ETF members who had passed the GCE
{AfL} Examination in year 2015, as assistance for their higher education. (See Graph 07}

The 10 benefit schemes operated by the Board for its members are as follows:
L Automatic Life Insurance Benefits: Maxkimum Rs. 100,000/ -
s Financial Assistance for Heart Surgery: Maximum Rs.300,000/-
3 Financial Assistance for Kidney Transplants: Maximum Rs 300,000/-
4. Total & Permanent Disability Benefits: Maximum Rs 200,000/-
E. Reimbursements of cost of Intra-Ocular Lens; Rs 18,000/- for both eyes

&. Financial awards for Year Five Scholarship holders (Children of ETF Members)
- 9000 Scholarships of Rs 15,000/- each annually.

7. “Shramasuwa Rekawarana” Hospitalization Scheme: Rs 25,000/ - peryear
Maximum {Rs 50,000/ for life time).

3. “Wivana” Housing Loan Scheme with concessionary interest + rates.

9, Year Five Scholarships for children of ETF members who had to terminate
employment due to permanent disability.

10. Financial grant for children of ETF members who passed GCE (A/L) - 5,000
Scholarships of Rs 12,000/- each annually.

& The convenience of the members who require money urgently the express
claim service is continuing.

Maintenance of Member Accounts

The Member Accounts Section is responsible for updating individual member accounts and
issuing of Annual Member Statemenits to the active members.

The total number of active and inactive accounts of the fund as at the end of the year was
approkimately 12.4 Million. The fund maintains member accounts for all the active and
inactive members.
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12,182,280 member accounts were updated up to year 2014 at the year end 2015 and it is
approximately 95% of the total estimated number of member accounts. Qut of these
accounts 9,881,300 were inactive while 2,300,980 member accounts were active and on
whose behalf Annual Member Statements were issued to the respective employers during
the year.

Investments

The Investments portfolio grew from Rs 185 Billion to Rs.210 Billion in 2015 which is an
increase of 11% over the previous year.

During the year 2015 the Board strictly followed the guidelines of the investments policy and
obtained a reasonable retum whilst protecting the capital.

A major portion of the portfolio amounting to Rs.192 Billion (91.5%) was invested in
Government Securities and Rs.3 Billion (1.3%) invested in Government Guaranteed Fixed
Income Instrumenits whilst Rs.10.8 Billion {5.1%) invested in equities and Rs.4.2 billion (2.0%)
in other investments. (See Graph 8)

The Board has earned a profit of Rs.1,194 Million on shares by way of dividends and capital
gains as compared to Rs. 1,204 Million in the previous year.

As stated earlier, during the year 2015, ETF yielded an investment income of Rs.19.5 Billion as
against Rs.18.4 Billion in 2014 which was an increase of Rs.1.1 Billion.

Collection & Emplavyer Relations

The main functions of this Division include collection of contribution through legal and
enforcement actvities, detecton of defaulters and enmolement of members to the
Employees’ Trust Fund Board in accordance with our Act and Collection procedure using our
17 Regional Office network situated islanwide engaging 332 staff members.

When compared to previous year, the members of Employers were increased upto 76,674
due to the inspection carried out covering all districts through 17 Regional Offices. The
operation work and monitoring were carried out secessfully through IT network of the Board.
Accordingly it was able to increase contribution by Rs.2,641 million in year 2015 over the
vear 2014,

The contribution payments and remitting of members details through online banking was
successfully implemented with Commercial Bank, Bank of Ceyvlon, Peoples Bank, Sampath
Bank and Hatton National Bank and such collection were over 27.5% of total contribution.

It was able to increase compliance rate in year 2105 when compared to year 2014 due to the
awareness programs conducted through Regional Office on regular basis.
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Further, in year 2015 the in-house and one day training programs and work shops on labour
laws and regulations which are relevant to entire labour force were conducted for Regional
Managers and field officers and from such programs Regional Office staff were able to
improve their theoratical and practical knowledge.

Administration/Human Resources

During the year under review, 16 numbers of persons left the service of the Board due to
retirements, resignations, terminations etc. In addition 7 numbers of staff members were
promoted to higher Grades. By end of the year the total employees of the Board were 929,

Asin the previous year, the staff at all levels were granted opportunities to undergo training
in their relevant fields in order to improve productivity, performance and attitudes which
helped contribute immensely for the progress made by the Board during the year. Special
attention was given to train the relevant staff in the IT Division while equal emphasis was
given for the improvement of language skills. The Senior Management was also exposed to
relevant Training programs to enhance their capahilities.

Finance
The Finance Division is responsible for overall financial functions of the organization.

Maonitoring and recording of all revenue and expenditure of the Board, all staff and supgliers'
payments and preparation of Monthly and Annual Accounts, progress Reports, Annual
Budget, Annual Dividend determination and other Management Information, continued to be
performed by this Division.

In addition to the above, co-ordinating and preparation of the Board's Corporate Plan, Action
plan, Annual Report, Observations on Audit Queries, Fnancial information to external
agencies and other financial documents are handled by this Division.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Division is responsible for maintaining the internal control process of the
activities of the Board while ensuring that the operations lead to enhanced financial and
operations discipline. The Audit Committee co-ordinated by the Internal Audit Division met
quarterly and discussed any shortcomings within the operations systems and monitored
rectification action. Also the Internal Audit Division largely focused attention on monitoring
the release of claims/benefits of the members which represents a significant percentage of
the outflow of the Fund. Further, the Internal Audit team visited selected Regional Offices
during 2015 and reported on all major operations. The Internal Audit Division also played a
major role in the modification of software modules by the IT Division by providing advice on
specific issues from the Audit angle. The Internal audit plan for the year under review was
also carried out successfully and special investigations were also performed by this Division.
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Technology

The entire operational activities of the Board such as Member Accounts, Collections,
Wember Services, Legal & Enforcement are operated using information technology. These
activities are functioning under main computer system of the institution called Member
Administration  Software System  (MASS).  Further the activities of the Finance and
Administration also carried out using computer software packages. Hence, at present almost
all the sections of the organization use information technology for their operations. In order
to decentralized Member Services activities, the main computer system of the Board is
linked with Regional Office network using IPYPN technology. The Online Banking facility had
been provided through 5 Commercial Banks by year 2015 to remit member contributions
and submit member details. Further intranet facility is used to exchange information among
Divisons and Regional Office of the Board. Accordingly, it is intended to introduce new
technology for the activities of the Board to provide efficient service for the members and
employers in future as well.

Amendments tothe ETF Act

The ETF Act was not amended since 1993 and the Management decided that certain
amendments to the Act were necessary in keeping with the current requirements and
developments. A special sub committee consisting of Board Members and Senior Officials
studied the required amendments to the Act and made recommendations to the Board of
Directors. The proposed amendments were approved by the Board and sent to the Secretary,
Ministry of Finance & Planning. Concurrently these amendments were also referred to the
Mational Labour Advisory Committee (NLAC) for study and comments. These proposals are
being finalized at NLAC. Thereafter, this has been sent to the Ministry of National Policies and
Economic Affairs to be forwarded to the Cabinet for the approval.
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
STATEMENT QF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 317 DECEMBER

P 1014
MNotas [Rs 000 ) [Rs 000}
Income
Imterest | ncame 1 15,318,740 17,311,835
Dividend | ncame 2 3B0,582 309,256
3ain f[Laoss) an Fina ncial Azsets at Fair Value through Prafit flLoss) E 533,560 534917
Cther | ncame 4 320,139 317455
Total Income 19,833,312 18,833 463
Expensa
Personnel Expensec 51 95, 389 H13,000
Administrative EXpenses 5.2 132,605 134 ,TEB
Financial Expenses 5.3 1,985 3,041
M Eember Expenses 5.4 429,610 380,512
Depreciatianaf Praperty and Equipment 16,536 158,605
Imterest Paid an Current Year 148,737 209073
Total Operating Expenses 1,724,218 1,559.014
Profit before Takation 18,109,084 17,274 449
Incame Tax ExpenEES i 105,153 202,131
Profit after Taration 18,003,901 17,072,318
Adjustment ta the Current¥ear Prafit 30,073 59,341
Adjusted Profit for the Year 18,033,974 17,132,259
Retained Prafit BfF 1,486,827 33,559
Transfer ta Availablefar 5ale Financial Instrument Reserve [1,4B5,737) -
Transfer fram Dividend Equalizatian Reserve Fund - 515,000
Frofit Available for Appropriation 18,052,064 17,680,218
Lecs: Proposed A ppartfanment - Interest 3.0% B,01%, 8517 5,287,328
Dividend B.0% 12,027,634 12,337,095
Frofit After Appropriaton 10,613 56,393
OTHER COMPREHENSWE INCOME STATEM ENT
Transferta Availablefar 5ale Financial Instrument Reserve 50,425 1,465,737
ActuarialGaing[Loss) (23,794} [38,303)
Camtingent Liahility Pravizian [21,300) -
Other Comprehensive Income 8,131 1,430434
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 19,344 1,486,227
Certified as correct,
-r; "h}—l.n
M«f £ |
LAY, Kumudini NI, Wimalaweera
Finance anager Deputy General Manager [Finance)

TheAccaunting Maotes an Pages Ma.239ta 247 and Accaunting Palicies an PageMa.245 ta 261 farm an integral partaf these Financial Statements.
The Baoardaf Directars is respansiblefar the preparatian and presentatian of these Financial 5tatements. Thece Financial 5tatements were
appraved by the Board af Directars and signed an their behalf.

R

Mahinda Madihahewa
Chairman fChief Executive Officar
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUNDG BOARD
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 317 DECEMBER 2015

15 14
Maotes [ Fes =n) IGER L
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalent 241 944 2,644,973
Other Financial Assets Held-for-Trading 7 1,820018 733,187
Financial Investrments - Available-for-5ale 3 2,073,928 8,592,784
Financial Investrments - Held-to-haturity g 198 320,192 1E9,651,791
Financial Investrments - Loans & Receivables 10 1,33E,538 7,545,296
Other Assets 11 7,885,281 E,512,774
Froperty and Equiprment 121 173,144 187,008
Intangible Assets 12.2 2EE 3E4
Investiment Prope ry 13 3,200,000 3,200,000
Total Assets X} 540,319 194,048, 157
Llabllity and Equlty
Current Tax Liabilities 33,582 E&, 330
Other Liabilities 14 351,851 244, 80
Frowvisions 15 213,754 JE923
Tatal Liabllltes 5o, 187 394,933
Total Bqulty 1 rr1941,132 198,653,233
Total Llabllltles and Bqulty X1} 540,319 194,048, 157
Certified as correct,
@; ﬁ_f)—fr‘

R AN Eurnudin MO Wimalaweera
Finance Manager Deputy General Manager [Finance)

The Accounting Motes on Pages Mo, 239 to 247 and Accounting Policies on Page Mo 248 to 261 form anintegral part of these Financial
Statemments. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Staterments. These Financial
Statetments were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf.

v
P

Mahiida Madihahews
Chairman / Chief Executive Officer

@ Employees’ Trust Fund Board l Annual Report 2015




EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUNDG BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FI3R THE YEAR ENDED 317 DECERMBER

15 14
Fs. Oy Fis, 'Oy
Dperating Activitles
Froceeds from Sale of Financial Instrument Designated at FWTRL 2,853,322 3,374,100
Maturities of Financial Instrument Held to Maturity 243,132,309 114,083 080
haturities of Financial Instrument Loan & Receivables E,2E3,837 111,547
Favrment for Purchase for Financial Instruments Designated at FWTEL [ 5,008, 253) [2,739,457)
Favrnent for Purchase of Held to Maturity Financial Instruments [271,B50,545) [127,811,04E)
Loan Granted forAcquire Loan & Receiable Financial Instrurment [148,4E4) [323, 76
Interest Recemed 1E,872,388 13,534,171
Dividend Received 524,271 E94,547
Other Incorme Received 281,704 319,473
Operational Expenses Paid [1,010,390) [BRE,324)
Member Expenses Paid [228,298) [200,755)
Incorme Tax Paid [11,3485) [9,84E)
Interest Paid (149,122} [209,274)
Year 5 Scholarship Fayvment/Fefund [&,3E4) [BE,573)
Higher Education Scholarship FaymentRefund [19,70d) [ 20,100
Met Lash Flows from Sperating Activitles {8, 10d, 593) [271,2 15)
Imwesting Activities
Furchase of Property and Equiprment [&,E33) [172.420)
Froceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment 12,482 5156
MWet Cash Flows from Imesting Activitles 3,819 [1},265)
Financing Activities
Contribution Feceived 17,902,928 15,759,617
Fefunds [11,493,444) [13,840 385)
Financial Expenses Paid [1,E39) [2,737)
MWet Cash Flows from Flnancing Actvites £,407 840 1,907 515
Met Increase [nCash and Cash Equivalents [1,793,024) 1,624,034
Cash and Cash Equivalents at&1® lanuary 2,644,973 1,010,938
Lash and Cash Equivalents at 31" December 841,949 1634,973
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD

STATEMENT OF INVESTM ENT A5 AT 31° DECEMBER 2015
LISTED 5SHARES - AVAILABLE FOR 5ALES

Lompany Name

ACL Cables PLC

AHOT Properties PLC
Aitken Spence Company PLC
Ait. Spence Hotel H FLC
Blue Diamonds PLC
Bairaha Farms FLC
Browns Investment PLC
Cargills Foods PLC
Carson Cumberbatch PLC
Central Finance PLC
Cevlon Investiment FLC
Cevlon Guardian Investment PLC
Colombo Fort Land PLC
Cotn. Bank PLC

Corm. Bank PLEC [X)

CIC Holdings PLC

DFCC Bank FLC

Dockyard PLC

Dialog

Dipped Product PLC
Eden Hotels FLC
Expolanka PLC
Havycarbs FLC

HME

HHRE [X)
lanashakthilnsurance PLC
lohn Eeells PLC

lohn Keells Holdings PLC
KelaniCables PLC
Lankern Cevlon PLC
LoLC FLE

Lavgfs Gas FLC

Mational Dev.t Bank PLC

Purchase Cost

[Fes.)

11,048, 534.00
58,216,639 61
381,225,195.71
20E,276,390.25
03 .E0

287 36, B8 ER
207 ,000.00
21,808,657 36
16,146,881 46
08,128, 880,20
#,523,353.47
143,302,105 61
55,326, 764.00
437 038,385 .54
434, E76, 388 .01
28,160, 480,20
G&8,326, 566,30
437,633,208.29
121,884,146 .80
2,119,707 .74
75,884, 504,37
43,035, 286 E1
140,778,782 .38
225,242,144 41
106,797 428 .83
13,808,143.35
15,799,867.57
2,531,304 435 83
35,776,386 .40
16,823,135 .76
280,181,556.13
1,630,691 .47
730,155, 98614

@ Emmloyees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015

Falr Value

[Fes.)

11,040,5 34,04
52,572,243.00
271,363,545.00
187,2 85,655.00
93,60
152,390,004.00
118, 800.00
17,702,100.00
15,533,231.40
08, 208,031,332
B, EOE, 40500
94, £77,547.50
19,810,849 00
437,038,385.54
434,76, 388.01
18,341,070.00
7FEG,235,2 74.02
334,660, 350.88
123,327,915.70
2,358,070.00
40,655,035.10
20,085, 20,00
135,063,658.06
262,042,485 00
100,707,428.83
14,004,498 O
15,348,91E.40
2,634,202,081 80
33,843, 800,40
8,051,130.00
241,163,384.00
1,8BE,078.00
1,325,8 25,000.00

MMarket
Value
[Fes.)

12,281,500.00
45,281,202 00
256,043, 260.00
161,207, 540.00
£2.40
239,624,423 40
#9,100.00
21,867, 300.00
12,45E,815 .00
07,502,250.00
5,437,659 .00
85,875,550, 20
16,030,687 .00
180,52 6,547 .00
304,84 BIE . 80
22,822,462 B
EOR,005,037. 70
265,64, 180 .00
123,655,930.30
1,806, 350.00
27,684,002 50
28,550,040 .00
128,680,619, 20
285,865, 67600
108,776,041 40
10,540,757.50
14,397,583.60
2,361,690, EE0.00
48,607, 874,40
7,405,470 .00
250,755,109.50
1,812,154.00
1,030,525, 200.00
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EM PLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD

STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT A5 AT 317 DECEMBER 2015
LISTED 5HARES - AVAILABLE FOR 5ALES

Lompany Name

Falm Garden Hotels PLC
FC house PLC

Feople's Leasing Co PLC
Firarmal Glass Co. PLC
Froperty Dew. PLC
EenvkaHolding FLC
Fesvs Energy PLC

Fowal Ceramics PLE
Fichard Pieris & Co. PLC
Sampath Bank

Sevlan Bank

Sevlan Bank [X)

Singer Finance PLC

Sri Lanka Telecom PLC
The Finance Co PLC
Trans Asia PLC

Wallibel Power PLC
Wallibel One PLC

Total

Unquoted Shares
Lompany MName
1 Fitch Ratings Lanka Ltd

2 First Capital Treasuries Ltd
Total

Purchase Cost

[Fes.)

5,500.25

2 076, 800 .00
57,407,127 .76
32,227,612.25
4,937 .00
114,531,574 .04
48,530 480 11
130,000,630.71
5,253,008.30
410,933,110.31
303,013,660, 14
30,050,638 26
23,608,129 87
110,340,299 .24
2, 550,000.00
37,071,514.05
47,175,248 43
43,284 081,77

Falr Value

[Fes.)

3,020.00

5E, EA0.00
57,927,956.83
18,801, 2 80,00
20,400.00
91,500,962.00
28,872 480,00
130,000,630.71
4,473,7 28.50
410,033,110.91
303,013,660.14
30,050,638, 26
23,625,868 65
1EE,760,454.00
£:30,540.00
54,334,355 .00
37,543,319.50
41,331, 3 B0.00

MMarket
Value
[Fes.)

1,862.00

5, E40.00
51,833,014.00
23,058,561.60
28,500.00
80,144,075.00
39, BED,000.00
124,036,617.00
4,473,728.50
308,758, 000.00
286,111, 500.00
30,202,153 .00
28,208,415 .20
155,202,836 .00
403,520 .00
53,001,230.40
46,778,435 .00
37,108,224.00

B,957,148,590.06

5,200 195 0131

B,417.668,455, 10

Purchase Cost
[Fes.)

B2 5,000.00
14,248 BOE.20

Met Assets Value
[Fes.)

1,640,375 00
79,640,700 00

14,673,606, 10

75,159,075, 00
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUHD BOARD

FILE HO :- 91604

YEAR OF ASSESSMENT 201516
COMPUTATION OF INCOME TAX LIABILITY FOR THE YEAR OF ASSESTMEHT 2015

Irwest rment incorne

Interets on Fised Dreposit
Irterest From Deberture
- WPHT Creducted
- Excempt under Sedion 1000
- Excempt under Sedion 2 (o)
Interest Income on Gowvernment Secorities
Cither Interest Income incloded inthe Imeestment Inoome
Interest Incom e included inthe Other Income

Interest noome from whichtz: 2 107 has been deducted

Interets on Fised Dreposit - WHT Deducted
Interest from Debenture - WHT Deducted
Interets on Rupes Loans - WHT Deducted
Interest on Investment Bonds - WHT Deducted
Ineterst on honey hak et - WHT Deducted
Interest on Custodial A'C - WHT Deducted
Ineterst on Treasuny Admin. Borrowing - WHT Deducted
ShilB Housing Loan Income - WHT Deducted
Interest on Bond - Power Project - WHT Deducted

Citheer Incomee

Taotal Stautory Incometfssessable IncomeTaxsble oo

Gross Income T=x Paysble

Le==: T=x Credits

Mational Tax Credit

E o Service G

From the “rfA 20142015

ESC paid duringthe Yesr

1 Installment Faid an 20.07.2015
™ Installment Faid an 30.10.2015

E=lznce Income Tax Paysble

Exempt Income

Employees’ Trust Fund Board l Annual Report 2015

13 935,157,270

4575007
2,793,607

(Erpreszed In S0 L3 ka3 Rape s

29,285,590
450,203,577
518,571,554
132,350,625 1,100,925, 755
19,554, 535,521
87,557,450
17 528 057
21,190,212 995
29,285,590
1,100,925, 755
188,532,225
1,219,510
71452327
F9,570
228,027,591
[1,536, 725,395}
19,553,455, 225
281,670,275
281,670,275
19,5235 157,270
T — " —
0% 1,953,515, 727
1 255,952,553
7559514 (1,953, 133,097
K= =
e—— ke
1,100,925,756
E——————
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EMPFLOYEES TRUST FUND BEQARD
MOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 319 DECEMBER

Interest |neonne

Finandal Imvestments Avallable forSake

Finandal Imvestents Held to Matur by
Interest on Fixed Deposit

Interest from Debenture

Yield on Treasury Bond

Margin on Treasu ry Bill

Interest oh Repuroh ase Agreements
Interest o Money Market

Interest oh Costodial AT

Interest oh Bonds - Power Project

Sub Total

Flnandal Imwestments on Loans amnd Recelvables
Interest oh Kupee Loan

Interst on YWivana Housing Loan

Interest oh Distress Loans (Special Loan)
Interest oh Wehicle Loan

Interest oh Special Distress Loan

Interest oh Special Festival Loan

Interest oh Cotmputer Loan

Interest oh Staff Hosing Loan - SKIB

Interest on Sport Club Loan

Sub Total

Total Interest |nanme
D ividend (ncome

Inwestirent Held for Trading
Dividends oh Shares - Quoted
Dividends oh Units - Quoted
Investirents Avallable forSake
Dividend on Shares - Unguoted
Total Bividend |noo e

Galn f{Loss) on Financlal Assets at Falr Value through Profit f{Loss)

Current Share Trading Profit
Fealized Gain on Share Reserve
Fair Walue Adjustrment of Linits
Fair Walue Adjustrent of Shares
Sub Total

Treher oo me

Fropetty Income - Lease Fent

Erofit on Sale of Property Flantand Equiprment
Surcharges

Inmime oh Express Claims

Staff Loan Incotme

Sundry Incorme

Frofit f [Loss) On Car Fark [Mawarm Mawatha)
Frofit / [Loss) On Holiday Bu nealow

Total Other | neome

2015 1014
( Fis 00 (RS0
20,395 478 851
184,916 125,166
16,052 506 15,130,214
543 B8 510,180
102,983 B4, E12
1,320 1,414
7,145 27,248
228,008 283,764
18,040,477 16621452
164,837 587,000
81,243 &7 EOR
5 548
5,713 4842
5,547 5,414
145 141
2 £
5,424 4,747
137 186
158,763 BO0, 385
18,318, 740 17,311,835
313,980 273,841
11, 380 8048
35,243 26,468
360,582 319, 256
A58, 264 772,387
475 OEY
[21,E96) &7,438
(9,727 35,801
833,850 BO4,917
15,084 24,525
12,358 7E1
292,543 247,756
10,02 17,BES
20,040 27,585
1,547 1,350
14,385 :
(2,098 (1,188
310,134 317 455

239



EMPLOYEES TRUST FUND BOARD
MOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 317 DECEMBER

Moates
Mk 14
[ Fes 0w [ 5w
1l Petsonnel Expenses
Staff Costs [Including Qirector) Comprlse:
B11  Wapesand Salarles
Salaries 458, 214 311,207
Directors' Fees 593 SEd
C st of Living Allcwance a5, 761 25,514
Dvertime 18,555 21,41
Holiday Fay 11,554 13,393
Sub Total 574,681 432,147
E1.1  Short-Term Monetary and Non-RMonetary Benefits
Eecruitrment, Training & Development 2,47 1,234
Staff Welfare 21,EE4 20,152
Inentive A8 34 7081
Owerseas Training 1,450 -
Encashment of Leave 12,2949 11,788
Bonus 24253 E&,119
Eeimburserment of Medical Expenses E1,E78 55,724
Staff Loan Cost 29,049 27,585
Interest o Housing Loans 17,267 18,000
Sub Total 318,523 P RE
513  Defined Benefit Plans
Interest Cost 1E,110 10, B0
Current Service Cost 8,742 E,397
Sub Total 24,852 17,537
E14  Oher Long Term Employes Benefits
E.F.F Board's Contribution E3,E10D E1,3E1
E.T.F. Board's Contribution 12,723 12,272
Sub Total 76,333 73,632
Total Persanmel Bxpetses 904, 389 813,000
Key Management Persannel Lompensation
Directors' Fees 593 SE3
Sub Total 593 563

B2 Adminlstrative Expenses

Building Fent 49,749 39,E85
Fates 547 554
Electricity Charges 18,280 18512
Telephone Charges 8,208 8,084
Water Charges 1,567 1,494
Consultancy Fees A28 BE
Avudit Fees A Oy
Security Charges E,07E E,BO7
Legal Fees 747 1,817
Hiring Charges 254 -

Secretarial Expenses 150 251
Fostage & Telegrarms - Admin. 1,882 2,222
Travelling & Subsistan ce - Admin. 754 1,004
Frinting & Stationery - Adrmin. 1,371 1,544
Media & Fublidty - Adrmin. 14 172
IT Expenses - Admin. 1,257 1,055
Adverstiserment & Press Motices 1,239 1,81
“Wehicle Insurance & License Fees 2,482 2,845
Mewspapers & Periodicals 535 E74
Donations A1k 9E

—
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EMFLOYEES TRUST FUND BOARD
MOTES TO THE STATEMENT QF INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

Motes
M5 14
[ Fes 0w IR LI
Disciplinary Inquiries - 12
Other Insurance 2 28
Office Upkeep & Requirements 204 JE1
Workers Compensation 2,320 -
Starmp Duty 175 iE
Miscellaneow s Expenses 2,75 2,1E5
“Wehicle Eepairs & Maintenance 11,004 1E,591
Fuel Charges 9,824 15,378
Maintenance of Building E,378 2474
Maintenance of Machine & Equiptments 2,397 2,112
Sub Total 132 608 134,786
B3 Finandal Expetises
Custodial Fee 333 2BY
Bank Charges 1,638 2,739
Bad Debts Written-off - 3o
Felease of Write Back Clairms 1E -
Wirite back of Unclaimed Refunds/ Benefits - 2
Sub Total 1498 3,041
Total Adminlstrative Expenses 1,128985 950,825
4 Member Bk penses
541 Member Benefits
Death Benefits Scherme §2,208 90 E1S
Fermanent Disablerment Scherme E,003 E,E14
1.0O.L I'rplanting Schetme 4,909 4,313
Sramasuwa Fekawarana Schetme 13,423 1E, 787
Heart Surgery Scherme 91,263 BE,174
Kidney Transplant Scheme 1,292 1,527
Year 5 Scholarship Scherme 11E, 250 24 970
Higher Eduacation Scholarship Scheme 48 444 52,E02
Sub Total 373,882 317,693
54} Member Servlms
Fostage & Telegrams - Memb. 18,230 20,204
Brinting & Stationery - Memb. 12,340 13,937
Computer Stationery 3,071 2,839
Self Employment Promotion Expenses 55 476
Member Eelated Expenses a2 -
Ermplovees fwareness Scherme 315 305
Travelling & Subsistan ce - Memb. 4,875 5,512
Media & Publidty - Memb. 245 EE
hedical Consultat. for Members 40 2B
Scholarship Expenses AES 1,531
Devatakirula Exhib. & CSE Project - 2,21k
Sub Total 40,651 48,085

4.3 IT Services

Maintenance of Hardware 4,355 3,874
haintenance of Software EED 326
Depreciation - 1T 5,407 0,980
Insurance-IT a7 45
Eental on Leased Lines 4,568 4,500
Sub Total 15,076 14,734
Total Member Expenses 429,610 380,512
& |ncore Tax

Met Tax Expenses 105,183 208,131

145,183 2,131
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINAN CIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014
Notes [R5:000} [Rs:000%
7 ther Financial Assets Held for Trading
Quoted Share Investment [Trading) 1,494 287 376,734
Less: Prowision for Diminuation in Value of Guoted Shares - -
Ouoted Units 334 732 356425
lélﬁiﬂls HBEIET
] Financial Invetments Avallable for Salz
Queted Share Investment Long Term 8427 668 8,105,949
Unguoted Share lnvestment Gida, 260 485 B35
Promissory Motes 12,174 12,174
Shares- Delisted & Under Liguid atich 25,228 25,228
Less: Provisicn for Diminution in Yalue Shares [25,228) [25,228)
Impairment oh Promissory Notes 112,174) 112,174)
8,973,928 8,592,784
g Financial Invetments Held to Maturity
Treasury Bonds 187,773,988 155,280 364
Treasury Bills 4 269,404 f,639,124
Cnted - Debenture 1,653,914 1,091,585
Less: Impirement on Debenture [ 7,450 (7,450
Fixed Deposits - 2,060, 200
Repurchase Agreement 1,750,702 1,365,858
Dekentures Lnguoted 2000, (RO 2oL 00 ChOHCE
Bonds - Povwer Project 2,679,635 2992 D00
198i320i192 159i551i191
10 Financial Assets - Loans 8 Recehahbles
Rupee Loans - G, 100k, QO
Housing Finance - B.D.B a7 Bal #17 850
Staff Loans
Distress Loan (Special Loan) 13,737 14 900
Special Distress Lean 1649 824 174 /58
Festival Advanre G110 928
Sperizal Festival Loan 917 8949
Special Advanes R 4517
Yehicle Loan 170,987 152,242
Computer Loan - 27
S| B-Staff Housing Loan 307 943 264 278
1,336,538 7,535,296
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINAN CIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014
MNotes [Rs:000} [Rs:000}
11 Other Assets
Accrued Income
Interest Receivakble G,184,771 4 QR85 702
Less: Provision Against Doubtful Income 127, 866) |27, 868)
2,156, 4905 4 457 B3n
Receivakles B Prepayments
Centribution Reeeivakle 1547314 1,366,104
Meney Order Control 3,590 1,402
Postal Franking Machine Imprest 457 434
sundry Debtors 12,4493 19,224
Dues from Ex-empl oyees 1,523 1,598
Security Deposits 2,984 2,483
Frapayment #3568 10,035
Pre - Paid Staff Loan Cost 121,324 120, 010
Advance Payment 1,802 2,231
Deposit - summervill & Co, 21,900 21,900
Less: Transfer to Other Comprehen sive |neome 121,900 -
MWedical Advance 15 45
Lean - Sports Cluk 1,060 1,617
1,700,924 1,547,592
Tax Recowverable
Tax Paid in Advance - L1z
- 12
Others including Stocks of Statichery
Stock of Staticnery & Consumalle G145 G, GRG0
Holiday Bungalow Inventory 1,308 1,178
7454 a, 838
7,865,283 6,512,779
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINAN CIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2015

2015 2014

Notes [Rs=000) [R5:0004
12.2  Intangihle Assets - Computer Software

At Beginning of Period 364 514

Amortzation 1103) [145]

AL End of Perind 266 369

13 Investment Property

At Beginning of Period 3,200, D00 3,200, 000
Change in Fair Value - -
At end of Pericd 3,200,000 3,200,000

14  Other Liahilites

Defined Benefit Obligation 193,085 145,459
Arceounts Payakles and sundry Creditors

Retained Tax on Claims & Benefits Paid 12,730 15,1949
Stamp Duty Payable on Claims 28 847
Unpaid Emeluments 142 87
Stamp Duty Payable on Salaries a3 90
Superntendent of EPF 11,775 11,240
sundry Creditors 46,1496 41,555
Unelaimed Refunds 4,754 4 840
Unpaid Death Benefits 9914 9,239
ET.F. Payakle 1,412 1,348
PAY.E Tax 2,457 2.16h
WAT 534 240
M B T e 495 470
Unelaimed scholarship 2,258 2,258
Returned Benefit 15,305 13,9497
Salary Deduretions Clearance 72 75

351,851 249 680
——

14.1 Defined Benefit Obligation

Opening Defined Benefit Ohbligation 01 Janu ary 146,459 95,727
Interest Crost 16,110 10, B0
Current Service Cost B, 742 G, 8497
Benefit Paid 8,020 6, 108]
Artuarial (Gains] /Losses on Obligations 29,794 38,303
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 31 December 193,085 146,459

15 Provisions

Prowvisioh for Audit fee 3,300 2,400
Prowision for Telephone 208 a8
Prowvisioh for Electricity 59 2,024
Prowision for Water 30 [
Prown, for Employees' decident Compensation Scheme 2,000 2,000
Prowision for Bono s CEd 263
Prowvision for Leave Encashment 10 B0 10,303
Provision for Postage 718 1,279
Provision for Higher Bducation Scholarship 87,300 C8.SR0
Prowision for Year § Scholarship 108,750 -
213,754 76,923
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EMPLOYEES' TRUST FUND BOARD
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINAN CIAL POSITION

AS AT 31°" DECEMBER 2015

Equity and Reserves

Retained Profit BYF

Retained Profit Current Period

Prict Year Adjustment

Transter from Dividend Equalization Reserve Fund
Profit Avallahle for Distribution

Less: Interest on Member Fund Balance 3, 0%
Dividend &, Fa
Retained Profit CfF

Member Fund as at 01 lanuary
Less: Contribution & lnterest Paid- Previous Year

Met Contribution Received During the Year

Add: Interest on Member Fund 3%
Dividend 6%

Member Fund as at 317 December

Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Revaluatinn Reserve

Available for Sale Financial Instrument Reserve
her Reserve

Equity and Reserves

2015 2014
[Rs:000) iRs:000}
18,090 33 554
18 003, 800 18,502, 752
30,073 59 941
- 515, 000
18,052 064 19111, 252
6,013,817 5,287,328
12,027,634 12,337,098
10,613 1,486 827
193 868 676 174,252 223
{2 815) {1,498)
193 865, 861 174,250 724
6,594, 705 1,893, 526
6,013,817 5,287,328
12,027 634 12,337 0493
218,502,017 193,868,675
142 000 142 000
3155, 730 3155, 730
182 466 .
{51,694) -
221,941,132 198,653,233
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Employees Trust Fund Board

MNotes to the Financial Statements

1.

Ll

1.1.1

1.1.2

1.1.3

1.2

13

Significant Accounting Policies
Corporate Information

Legal and Domicile Form

Employees’ Trust Fund Board (ETFB) is a public corporation, established on 15t March
1981 in Colombo, under the provision of ETF Act No.46 of 1980, It was established
under the Ministry of Labour and brought under the Ministry of Finance & Planning in
1997.

Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

All public sector employees who are not entitle to government pension scheme and all
private sector employees are members of this fund while their employers are required
to remit 3% of the gross earning of their employees to the fund, monthly. Apart from
managing the fund, ETF Board involves in implementing a range of social and welfare
benefits to members during their employment.

Date of Authorization to Issue

The financial statements of ETF Board for the year ended 31st December, 2015 were
authorized for issue in accordance with resolution of the Board of Directors on 25th
February 2016.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for
certain assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. All values are rounded
to the nearest rupee (Rs.), except when otherwize indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of ETF Board have been prepared in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS). The preparation and presentation of these
financial statements is in compliance with the Financial Regulations of the
Government of the Democratic Socialist Republic of 5ri Lanka.
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1.4

1.5

1.5.1

1.5.2

1:53

Going Cancern

The Management of ETF Board has made an assessment of the Board’s ability to
continue as a going concemn and is satisfied that the Board has resources to continue
in business for a foreseeable future.

Furthermore, management is not aware of any materal uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore,
the financial statements are continued to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest and Similar Income and Expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial
assets classified as available for sale and financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the Effective
Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
pericd, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the
financial instrument {for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral
part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized
using the original rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the entity’s right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Cther Income is recognized when the entity’s right to receive the payment is
established except for the interest income on fair value measurement of Staff
loans that is amortized over the employees’ service period.
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1.54

1.5.5

1.6

1.7

Adjustment to the Current Year Profit

Error correction has not been adjusted in retrospectively since it is impracticable to
present comparative information for more periods. The Board restate the opening
balance of assets, liabilities and equity for the current period after recovery of such
errors.

Changes in Comparative Infoarmation

The Bank overdraft amount of Rs.18,160,674 which was presented in the category of
other liabilities in 2014, now has moved to the category of Cash & Cash Equalants.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Board’s
functional currency. All Financial Information is presented in Sri Lankan Rupees.

Financial Instruments — Initial Recognition and Subsequent
Measurement

Date of Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Board becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
This includes ‘regular way trades”; purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulationor
convention inthe market place.

Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initfal recognition depends on their
purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All
financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs,
except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities Held For Trading

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are recorded in the statement
of financial position at fairvalue. Changes in fair value are recognized in income
staternent. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in the income
statement according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to the payment
has been established. Included in this classification are equities that have been
acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been
designated by management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an
instrument at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

. The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would octherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or
losses on them on a different basis.

. The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or
both, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss are recorded inthe
staternent of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in “Net gainor
loss on financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss *. Interest
earned or incurred is accrued in “Interest income” or “Interest expense”, respectively, using
the effective interest rate (EIR}, while dividend income is recorded under “Dividend Income”
in the income statement when the right to receive the payment has been established.

Available far sale Financial Investments

Available for sale investments include long term equity investment and debt securities which
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subseguently measured
at fair value.

Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity (Other comprehensive income}
in the “Available for sale reserve”. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in the income statement in “Other income®.
Interest earned whilst holding available for sale financial investments is reported as interest
income using the EIR. Dividends earned whilst holding available for sale financial investments
are recognized in the income statement as “Other income” when the right of the payment has
been established. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in
the income statement in “Impairment losses on financial investments” and removed from the
“Available for sale reserve”.

Employees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015
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Held te Maturity Financial Investments

Held to maturity financial investments are non—derivative financial assets with fiked or
determinable payments and fixed maturities, which the company has the intention and ability
to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are
subseqguently measured at amortized cost using the EIR, less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an
integral part of the EIR. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the income
statemnent. The losses arsing from im pairment of such investments are recognized in notes to
the income statement.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initfal measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method
{EIR}, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in interest income in the income statement. The losses arising from
impaiment are recognized in the income statement in other operating expenses. The fair
value loss is amortized over the employees service period as an employee cost.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Investment in Repurchase Agreement has fiked or determinable payments and fixed maturity
and the Board has the positive intent and ability hold to maturity thereby determined to be
held to maturty investment. This should be initfally measured at fair value including
transaction cost if any and subsequently to be measured at amortized cost using effective
interest rate.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The ETF Board assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impaiment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an ‘incurred loss event’) and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried at amortized cost {loans and advances to employees and held to

maturity investments), the entity first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impaiment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
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financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Board determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an

individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount

of the loss is recognized in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced camying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

The interest income is recorded as part of “Interest income”. Loans together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery. If,
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impaimment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original EIR. i a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impaiment loss is the current EIR. If the entity has reclassified trading assets to loans and
advances, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the new EIR determined at
the reclassification date.

Available far Sale Financial Investments

For available for sale financial investments, the entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, the entity assesses individually
whether there is objective evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income
staternent. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss, The interest income is recorded as part of “Interest income®, If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be
objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized inthe

income statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statemeni.

Employees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015

e




In the case of equity investments classified as available for trading , ohjective evidence would
also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognized in the income statement — is removed from equity and
recognized in the income statement. Impaimment losses on equity investments are not
reversed through the income statement; increases in the fair value after impairment are
recognized in income statement.

Re-Classification

The Board evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio to determine whether the intention 1o
sell them in the near future is stll appropriate. When the Board is unable to trade these
financial instrument due to inactive markets and therefore management’s intention to sell
them in the foreseeable future, the Board may select to reclassify these financial
instruments as Financial Instrument available for sale as defined by 5LAS — LKAS 39 (Financial
Instrument: Recognition and measurement).

Financial instruments re-classified as available for sale are measured at fair value and
unrealized gains will be recognized directly in  Equity through other comprehensive income
in the “Available for Sale Financial Instrument Reserve” and unrealized losses will be
transferred from the same Reserve to the extent that loss does not exceed the balance held
in the said Reserve as at that date.  The rest of the losses on fair value adjustment will be
recorded in “Net gain or loss on financial instrument designated at fair value through profit
orloss” in the Income Statement. When the investments are disposed of, the cumulative
gain or losses previously recognized in Equity is recognized in the “Income Statement” in
*Other Operating Income”,

Consolidation of Accounts

The Board had acquired 90% ownership of Lanka Salt Limited at a consideration of Rs.
470,960,938 from General Treasury in 1997, The investment had not been consolidated 1o
the parent company due to fact that parents business purpose is to invest funds solely for
returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both.

The interest of the Board holding an  investment portfolio is exclusively with the view of
subsequent re-sale or held for maturity.
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1.8

1.5

Praoperty, Plant and Equipment

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes
purchase price, directly attributable costs and the estimated present value of any
future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding
liahility is recognized within provisions.

Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant & equipment in
order to restore or maintain future economic benefits expected from originally
assessed standard of performance is recognized as an expense in Income statement
when incurred.

Provision for depreciation is calculated using the reducing balancing method other
than real estates (Investment Property). Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and equipment so asto
write off their carrving value less residual value, if any, over their expected useful
economic lives. The estimated useful economic life times of the assets are as follows.

Computer Equipment - 20%
Cther Equipment - 20%
Furniture - 15%
Motor Vehicles - 25%
Fixtures & Fittings - 33.33%

Depreciation of assets begins when it is available for use.

Impairment of Non—financial Assets

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Board estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or

CEWs fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using & pre—tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
comoborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Board estimates the asset’s or CGWs
recoverable
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1.11

amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has beena
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
income statement.

Investment Property

Investment properties are measured initfally at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair values of investment properties are included in the Income Statement in the
pericd inwhich they arise.

The Board's investment property shall revalue in every three years time to open
market value, with changes in the carrving value recognize in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.,

Rent receivable is spread on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Where

an incentive (such as a rent free period) is given to a tenant, the carrying value of the
investment property excludes any amount reported as a separate asset as a result of
recognising rental income on this basis.

Intangible Assets

1.11.1 Externally Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and
assessed for impairment. Whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortization pericd and the amortization method for an in
tangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting
pericd. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives

is recognized in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Computer Software Packages

Amount incurred in acquisitionfupgrading Computer software Packages are
recognized as an intangible asset and amortized over 3 years.

1.12 Leasehold Properties

1.12.1 Operating Lease

1.13

Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are not
transferred to the Board (an "operating lease"), the total rentals payable under the
lease are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Inventaories

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realizable value, after making due
allowances for chsolete and slow moving items.

1.14 Retirement Benefit Cost

1.14.1 Defined Contribution Plans

Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’
Trust Fund Contributions in line with respective statutes and regulations. The Board
contributes 15% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees to the Employees’
Provident Fund and to the Employees ‘Trust Fund respectively.

1.14.2 Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the first year of service for all
employees, in conformity with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards LKAS 19 - Employee
Benefits. However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No.12 of 1983, the liakility to an
employee arses only on completion of five years of continued service. The liahility is
not externally funded.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The entity’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs are
deducted.

Employees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015




The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on high guality corporate bonds
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the entity’s obligations and that
are denominated in the same cumrency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.
The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit
relating to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the
benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss, The
entity recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans in
other comprehensive income.

Key assumptions used in determining the retirement benefit obligations are as

follows:

Discount Rate 11%
Salary Increment Rate 02%
Retirement Age &0 Years

1.15 Taxation

1.15.1 Current Taxes
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for

the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

1.16 Equity
1.16.1 Member Fund
Contribution received and receivable from members net of refunds made to members

during the year together with interest and dividends accrued to them are consisted in
member fund.

1.16.2 Dividends
Dividends are recognized when the fund’s right to receive is established.

1.17 Provisions
The Board has recognized provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amounts. The
provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

obligation at the reporting date, discounted at a pre-tax rate reflecting current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the liability.
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1.18 Changesin Accounting Estimates

139

Annual expenses for Higher Education Scholarship Benefits are provided with the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the yeary obligation. However,
the actual No. of Applicants cannot be measured with precision but can only be
estimated based on latest available information.

There fore, following adjustment has been made to the current year Scholarship
Benefits expenditure account in respect of previous years expenditure.

Higher Education Scholarship 2015 2016
(Rs’000) (Rs.000}
Provision during the year 2015 2011 {2,424} .
Less: Adjustments for 2012 {576} 144
2013 (458) (1,656}
2014 (3,840) (9,744)
Met: Expenditure Changes to Income Statement: 52,692 48,444

Rs. 21,900,000 shown under the contingent liability represents a payment which had
paid to a certain company on breach of an agreement. The Board had appealed
against the court decision and aforesaid company had deposited a bank guarantee
worth of Rs.21.9 million in the courts.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Board makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future,
actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Estimates and assumptions

(a)

Valuation of Investment Property

The entity obtains valuations performed by external valuer in order to determine the
fair value of its investment properties. These valuations are based upon assumptions
including future rental income, anticipated maintenance costs, future development
costs and the appropriate discount rate. The valuer also makes reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.
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(b

(c}

3.1

3.2

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Board determines the fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted,
using valuation technigues. Those techniques are significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including discount rates and estimates of future cash flows. Inthat
regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot always be substantiated by
comparison with independent markets and, in many cases, may not be capable of
being realized immediately.

Useful Lives and Residual Values were Appropriate far Property, Plant
and Equipment

The entity tests annually whether, the useful life and residual value estimates were
appropriate and in accordance with its accounting policy.

Financial Instruments - Risk Management

Risk Management Structure

The board has a compliance function to access the Board’s compliance with laws,
regulations, regulatory guidelines, internal controls and approved policies in all areas
of business operations.

In common with all other businesses, the Board is exposed to risks that arise from its
use of financial instruments. This note describes the Board's objectives, policies and
processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further
quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these
financial statemenis.

There have been no substantive changes inthe Board's exposure to financial instru
ment risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the
methods used to measure them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in
notes.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Board will incur a loss because its customers or counter
parties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Board manages and controls
credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual
counterparties and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits.

Impairment Assessment

For accounting purposes, the Board uses an incurred loss model for the recognition of
losses on impaired financial assets. This means that losses can only be recognized
when objective evidence of a specific loss event has been observed. Triggering events
include the following:
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v Significant financial difficulty of the customer

¥ A breach of contract such as a default of paymeni

¥ Where the Board grants the customer a concession due to the customer experiencing
financial difficulty

] It becomes probable that the customer will enter bankruptey or other financial
recrganization

¥ Ohservable data that suggests that there is a decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the loans
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S DEPARTMENT
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The Chairman
Emplovees” Trus: Fund Roard

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the Employvees™ Trust
Fund Board for the year ended 31 December 2015 in terms of Section 10(7) of the
Emplovees’ Trust Fund act, Nodo ol 1950,

The audic of Tinanc-al statements of the Fmpioyees” Trost Fund Board for the year ended

3l Mecember 2015 comprising the statement of financial position a- =1 31 Decemnber
20715 and the starement of income, stazzment of changas in equity and cash Tow statemenit
For the weur then ended and & summary of signiticant accountng policics and other
explanarory mformanna, was camice ont under my directon m pursuance of provisions in
Article 1244010 o the Constitution o' the Demnocratic Secialist Repoblic ol Sri Luanka read
m conjunetion with Section L L) of the Emplovees”™ Lmist Fund Ace, No 20 of 1950, My
comments and abservations which | consider should be published with the Annwal Repor
nl the Board interms of Seesion 1T) of the Fmplovees” Trust Fund Act appear in this

report.

1.2 Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management 1s respansible for the preparaticn and laie prescotation of thess
Tmanctal stalemenls o gecondence with S0 Lanka Accounting Standards and for
such meernal contrel as the management detormunes is necessary w enable the
preparation of lnancial stalements thel are free rom marenal misstitemenrs

whether due b Traud or errer,

1.3 Auditor's Responsibility

My responstbi by oo express 0 opinon ofn cese financisl statements based an
my audic. T conducted my audit in accordance with 80 Lanks Auditing Standards
consistent with Intermational Auditing Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions

(ISSAL OO0 - TRTOY. These Standards reguire that, T eomply wath the ethical

fuza WETD emyips end SUodEC. @ ramid), - g ML GRERTE &S, (bsipdes Sscuems, o e 6T Fuldies Biesl, Eozrmmlis, S Daska
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L ILTH

requiramenits aud plan ard perform e wudil 10 oblain redsonzhle assurance aboul
wherher the fnancial statements are iree trom material misstaements.

an audil invalves performing procedures L ohtain audit evidence about the
ameunts and disclosures in the Pmancial slatements.  The procedures selectad
depend on the anditors judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
matc-ial misstatements of the fingncial statements, whether due to fraud wr crror.
In meking tiose risk assessments. the audie considers mternal contrel relevant to
the Buurd's preparation and Fair presentation of the financial statemenrs 1 eTiler
1o design audit procedures thal are appropridls (o the circumsldnces. bt ot for the
purpose of exprossing &n opimion o e cifictiveness of the Hoard's interal
contral. An audit glse incindes evaluating the appropriasencss o zccounting
palicies used sl the ressonehleness ol acoounting  estinisles made by
managzmenl, s well gs svaluating the overall proseration of Sinancial slatements.
Seetion 1001 ol the Dmplovess™ Trust Tund Avl Moo 46 of 1930 gives powers o
e Anditor Goneral wo determume the seope and exient ol the audir.

| helicve that the audit evidenve | have obtained is sulliciant and appropriate 10
privide a basis for my awldit opinzon.

1.4 Buasis Tor Qualified Opinion

My apinier s gealifisd bascd on the matters deseribed i paragreph 2.2 of thi=

TEnoTl.

[E¥)

Financial Statcments

21 Cealified Opinion

In my opimais except or the effects of the matters deseribed in paragraph 2.2 of
this reporl. the financial statemerts give a wrue and fair view ol the financial
position o Ihe Cinpleyees” Trust Tund Board as at 51 Decernber 2015 and its
financiul performance and cash Mows for te vear then ended 10 sccordance with
Sri Lenka Accounting Standands.
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22 Comments on Financial Statements

2,21 Conselidated Financial Statcments

[ he foallow g observations are made.

L A sel of Consolidated Tinancial Statements should be prepared e repoen the
investments those wirh a contral me ierest made o subsidiery companies hy
the parent company 0o lerms of Sri Lanka Accowning  standard 27,
“Consalidated and Separate Financial Statements™ and 0 o0 coehd not be
prepared, the reesens showd beodselosed i Doancial stetement. Cven though
the Board  had purchused 90 per cent shares oo o consideranon ot
s 470800 935 aut of tae shares o8 Compsery an Ue year 1900 onsclidated
Frnaneml Stztements hae net beer prepared up to 31 December 2015 0 torms
ol the abeve standard.

iy Dven thoush it weds sttod e Doanciel statements that the above investiment
ha been made W eam capital profits in the wear 2015, neither any camital
protit made trom the vear 1997 up w31 December 2012 had been recognized
nor the valie a= &1 31 December had been discloszd in the Gnancial siiemenis
in terms of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 34

1.2.2  sri Lanka Accounting Standards

1 he fallowing observations are made.

{a} =11 Lanka Accounting Standard 01

il Woen gn oentty cpoms its assets and labismes i terms of Sechion Gl
ot the Stndard. if sfhonkl be presenied gs corrent and non currst
dssvls, cscept owhen a prasenmation hased  on liovidine provides
informetion that is reliable and more relevant Even theagh the Board
Fad presenied s ssels and dabulites on lguidation basis exceptional
o the classification & current and non-cinrent asscrs, il had not neers
dischosed nthe Mmamcial slalements.

(i1 Froen thoagh a description of the rature and purposes of the reserves
maintacned by oan cnoey an lerms el Secoon Py ol the Standard
shoahd b disclosed in Onaccial staremeants, the natwrs 2006 e purposcs
o the Revalvarien Reserve amd Divadend  Fouabzsion Reserve
maintarnes oy the Besrd bad not been sulTewntly disclosed.

e The entity should present all inceme and sxpeanses either inoa single
statement of comprehensve moomme OF sepETEC Y N Dwo slalernenns
Csratement of meame and comprehensive salement of ncomel o
termma ol Rection 81 of the Sendard., The disadvantape of decronsing
the price amounzing o Bs 871026571 geewmad doe 1o sdentifeation
ol gvailable Tor ale linarcial assets of the Board. to fair value in terms
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of 30l Lanks Accounting Standard 39 sx w0 31 December 2005 hud not
heen shown e the compreiensive statement of income in the currerns
VEAL.

ihy SrilLanks Accounting Standard 08

{e)

(d)

{e)

Fvin though The natre of error extent recifed mlermizion on (e lems
alfcoted e recufeations shocld be disclosed i fizancial stalerments i lecms
of Section =8 o this Standard in rectitving the crrors in the prior periads.
wformanion on prior vears sadsiments amoceied too B D AU 00 sl
R 3004000 i the vear 2004 1w the members Tund and the retained preli
and a sum of Rs 28103000 and Rs 30,0735 000 made o the vear 2017 in the
stlemen! ol chanue- o ocomity ol the Board  hed oot been disclosed
financial Statements.

Sri Lanka Aceounling Standard 16

[war thongza the assers which had heen depreciating for mare than 25 vears
werz remainsd mothe Oxed g=sols gmounting 1o Hs 20 288,000 g5 a1 21
Dheeomoer 2013 & revaloatien had not heen carried our to dizclose 153 fair
vilie,

Bri Lanka Accounting Standard 37

il Vven thougd lawesdits nstitutad agains: exzernal parties by the Board
were remaired as o oar 31 Decomber 2015 in onder oo recover

cormmibulions,  tvesioents and  investment neome, sulTicient
information in cespect of fhelr mamre, current position @te. had nar
been diselesed.

ity Dwven though o contingent asset amounting o Bs 21 Q00000 adjssted
weomotomoAccordanes wilt the above Swndand sccordimez o the
Cnurcial sietements of the Board tor the preceding vear hed been
deducred o the compreaensive meome stslement e the vear under
revicye, lewel action taken in that respect and thew current position hac
net been disclosed in the financal statemenss,

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 39
il After the imitial recognition, cvailable for sule financial Azzets should
ba recoumized #l the Lair value ab the cnd ol cach penod ol reporta,
caleulanon of Zair value should be made in accordance with the
provisions in 511 Lanles Financisl Reporting Stemdard 13 " lair valie
mensureren™. bven tonsh e valuz of investment made o ordinary
shares of 02 companies hed been shown in the fInancial statements as
net assels valug of Rs75,Z90.075% as al 31 March 2074 ame 30
Seplesnber 2014 respectively, the fair value of respective  inveslenl
g= ar 31 Decamoaer 2013 had not been reporad. When considering the
nel wsset value of one company ocl ol thel asoa 31 March 2005 the




anfsl

! il

value of vestment bad neressed by B2 3623300 over the value
shown i e Nnancilal stalemanls,

(i) Fwen though the mvestment made in 03 companies of Linit Lrusts
murchased by the Board prior to the yens 2000 had been tdenifiad as
foir walue through profit and less finaneisl wssels mo Enancial
staternenss it was ohserved that 17 ad nat gninvesunent purchasd for
making daily sales as thers were no lransactions since (he year of
svrehase, iU had not been dentified as avatlable Tor sale Lnancial

A=sels.

in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 41
Investmen Asscls are recogmizcd 1o the revalued valoe after the izl
recogrition by the Board and even though vores -t the accouats have stated
tbat revaluaricn should be dene onee mocuch three vaars and mvestment
assers valued al Ba 3 200000000 hed been last revelucd tn the year 2001,
s Tair value had non heen represented &3 at 531 December as a revaluation
Lad not been elected up te 21 December 20020

2,23 Aveonnting Policies

e Tolleswing abscrvations gre mnde.

{a) Over 90 per cent of fe assets maintainsd ot Faic value duough proftoand loss
as ar 31 December 2004 by the Buanl were reclassificd as asses avzlable for
sale on the basis of © Board could not made ransactions as an active mitkel
was not avedlable™ anoa dscizion laken by the Doard of Dirceiors i February
013, Onl el the shares rechwsified as such as 2l 31 December 2012 amd
mamntained without the ntenten of short lerm sale porchasad in the vear 2015
17,557,347 chares costing R=.2,842 068 045 of 16 companies had been sorld al
“here narker ino the wear 2013 (hefore elepsinz even ome year aller
reclassification in the wvear 2004y amd it was obsorved hal 1 waz an action
ke swithout complyng the pelicy ol recognilion of tinanen|  assots
mentiored w the Accoenting Stamdand.

(k) 11 was observed hal the fact, that “Hoard could net made frassactens ag an
activie marhel  was  not oavailable”  adduced  as the main rezson dor
reclassiflication of financial assets from fair value throngh profit and loss
available fior sele as at 30 Decerrhers 2004, was not @ legical reason for shor
term trading them at share market and the basis for reclassification ul’ shares
therehy was no rensenable,

224, Aceonnting Deficiencies

The tollowmeg observations are mnade,
1) Operating swplus of the vear had been overstated by Bs.0,01 3,817 000 since the

merssl of Rs o 173,817.000 w be credicd we the individual accounts of the

members of the Fund i the vear under review had net boon brought o accounr gz
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aperating eapensss, The operating profit of the preceding vear and i the yoar
prior w the precedime year had heen overstated by Ra 3 287,328,000 ang
[35.4.752.333,000 respectively dug to not nccounting the mterests in the respective
WU

(bi Income tax receivehle amounting to R<.121.882,827 overpad by the Beard before

the yesr 2006 and remimed up 1o the voer of assessment 20142015 had nan heen
lakzn inta comsiderution in preparasion of francial sketoments in the curent year.

21 o depraciation of Txed cssets of the Board. the depreciatios expense hil been

—
r

pndesstated v Rs 6,794,794 m il Gnancial statemans Tor the vear 2015 as anch

profls tar the vear had heen overstuted by that amonnt

N

L5 Unexplained Differences

My reconciliaion whasoever qad heen includad in the Anancial statements

respect of £1e iy lianility computed and prepared hy the Board for the wear ol
assessment 207152006, and the v sxnense shown i (he s@lement ol incore and

the tax pavahie halanee shown i the statement of Fnancial position,

2.3 Agcounts Reccivable and Payvable

The lillewing abservalions as made,
a2 Approval had been given o resign from service wilhuul recovering the

spezial distress loan balance wimounting to Re S08.7RY recoverable from
Cx-Additional Generzl Menager af the Board and ozl amount had net
been recevered even by 31 December 2015,

() A wval sum of Re29972000 comprsing wunclaimes death benelits
remained merewsme continuously since the year 1995 amounting
K09 14000, resined henetits comtinued sizee the vear 2001 amountiag
1o Re. 13,305,000 and unciaimed benefits amoumrtinge o Re 2 755000 had
heer umsettled vven by 31 Decombuer In the vear undor review and o sum
ot Bs. 3,692,070 out of it represenung 12 per cent only fad been sevtled e
the relovan heneticizries by 30 April 2016,

el There wus o nzx of depriving ol money 1o the relevans members as their

coptriputinns witalling s 2365392.633 recoveree from emplovers by
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the Beard Fom the vear 1981 w 2004 hald been retained in other
temporaTy accos without heing credited 10 the individual aecounts of
cach memoer in werns of Sectiorn 16 ol the Fuml Act Even though a
special umit was satablished on 10 Fobrary i 2006 [or creditmg these
mories oereeciaiely o the mesnhers” accounts, 10 was nol revealed the

amodnt 50 settled by 08 June 2016

24 Nop-complisnee with Laws, Rules, Resulations and Management Decisions.

The fallowing ehsoregtions are made
Reference to Laws, Rules. Non-compliance
Heculations und
Management Decisions,

Shop and OMce Emplovees Fvon thongh the maximuor comher of leave

Act, Nl 19 at' 1934 entitled to emplovees o tetns o the Act wies 27
s bome 14 ey anmus! legve and 07 day casual
geve. Board fad gramed the employecs 42 day
lcave per wmum. Even rhough in paying for
evertune, ane and hall our rale as 4 wage ol an
ardmary haur should be paid, the overtime cost
had been e DRSS 000 11 the wear 2003 a5 the
Beoard had paid overtime o one and hall hour
par overtinte hour adding =alary of one dey,
Even though over the ordinary masimon period
(45 hours per oweek) should be o served o
enlitlement lor overtome, overtime had been paila
liera period Lo serving enly OF duvs per week,

Fmavcial  Reculatdons  of  Action o rerms of Financial Resulatons fad nol

Prermncralic Socialisl heen taken on 09 chegues ssued but por realizad
Republic af 8:1 Lanka as at 31 Lecember 20135 valued al Rs 245 430 40
Financial Regulation 369 4 bunle cument aeeouml meimtained by the Hoard.

2.5 Transactions not Supported by Adequate Authoriry

I waleularing the amount of special distress loan pavable o an emplovee by the
Doard, the allowances sre also based mothe calewlzon moaodiiion o the hasic
stlary [Salery of 12 moetths inclusive of allowances) Dvidence wes nnl made
available Tor audit whither the reasury approvil hid been obaainzd therean.
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3 Finanvial Roeview

31 Financial Results

The to lowing abservarions are mads.

Y The operations of the Doard tor the vear under eoview nad resulicd m
an atter —tax proiit of R 8005900000 as comparasd wih the
correspoading profic of Ra 170723140000 m the preceding yaur. by
incdicaling an mprevement of Bs 930 53330000 17 the fnancial result tor
the  wear under review. The  ineressc ol inrerest incoms by
B LUUESOS 000 hed been mamly annkbuted oy this improvement,

(b} fn wkimg by constderanion e conmbuilon of e Board and s
mprovement in o the cumrenl veas and the preceding four vesrs, gven
thenngrh the comtmibotiom had mereased o rendency of decreasing the rate
ul mmpmvemen) aller the vear 2003 was observed, Accosdingly. rate of
mmprovemient hud deereased by 2031 per cent in the vear 2004 and by
#24 por contan the vear 2003 Thwe inercase of the coutcibutien o the
wiar 2013 as comparal will The vear 2004 had declinad by owver 20 per
eenl und the decrcuse of the rate ol improvement of income was the
T reasen alirthuted or ks,

ol Tre bl irearme ol the Board o the vear under revissw had shown an
impresement of 33 per cent as campared with the preceding year cnd &
0.2 per cent impravertent as comparad with the budaeted income for
the wvear under review. However the total expenditure o the year onder
roview hd nereased by 1005 por cont as compared with the preceding
veer snd aueordingly the entite expendiure ad increescd by twice
appraximately as “he improvement of entive income as comparsd wilh
the preccding vear

. . Analytical Financial Review

I he “llowarz anservations are msde,

{a) Chperating prolit ratio ol the Boand Bed been 917 per cent in the vear
ZO0S andd 917 per cent o the vear 2004 and Thus deercased v 06 per
cent Ile vear 20015, Betorm oo Daod ratio n the vegr ander revisw u
compared with the preceding vear had doereascd by 087 per cont,

il As compared with the value of the Fund &= 21 10w beginning of the vear,

the total income of the Board had been 1023 per cenl i the year 2003,
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TED per centin the vear 2004 znd as such it was decreased by 057 in
the wvear 2005 The zannual meeme  ss compered  with the net
corlribuions receivad in the vear and members” Fund apening Ralance
amounted o %R per cend,

(e Cven though the Moembers” Fumd of the Board had increased by 11.2
per cent % Janwary 200> as comparcd wuh January 2004, the nerease

ol gravss imesime ol e Board Bad remained gs 3.5 por cont

33 Legal events instituicd by the Board

The Board had filed cases aggivse 04 mantations, ene institution and S0 losliubiens
Tor recovery of inferest income of IMVESTMSNTE. 00¢ 10 recover & cumpensaion said

and o recover condribuions and surcharges rospectively,

A4 Working Capital Management

The cash balances of 1he accourtls al the Money Market Transaction Acooonls
maintairad 0o commercial Bank by the Beard amounticg 1o Hs 1 85003375 and
B L953.238 as al 31 Decomser 2015 had 2een kepl in an ordinary savings zceount
anel isosueh the ordinery interest income had onlyv heen reccived and Gt had

deprived ke opperlunitics o reeeive othar higher income.

4. Dperating Review

4.1 Performance

The fallowing abssrvations zre mace.
Gl Tae obiective: of the Beard in terms of Secton 07 of the Fraplovees® st
Fumd Act, Mo, 4o of [950 are given below,
# o promote emplovess  ownership, cmpliveoes woilyre,  cconanic
demoeracy through participation i Hnancing eod invesiment:
¢ o promotz the smploves participation inomamapement throuaslh the
zeguisition of equity interest in enterprizes;
s |0 oprovide for non-conteibutory Denstit W smployees on reoremert; and
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e Todoall such ather acts o things as mav be neccssary tor, of conductive
toy, the ettziument ol the ehove ahjects.

by Dven thoazh it had acoommodaied w join sellemplived persons 100 the

[

Eraplovees” Trust Fund, o otemms of Section 20000 of the Emplovees” Trust
Iamd Act, ot ol TORG o wmended by Seetim 7 ol Fmpoosees” Trust Fund
famendment) Act, NodT of T9RE omly 39088 members, | 45 per cent of
2087 257 reported as zelt~emploved persons i Sri Lanka cs a0 31 Decemhe

2004, covld have been joined as members of the Board. Concribtions received
from sell- employved pessons i the vear 20103 amounied w B 45005 6300 )
was aboat 024 per cent o of the ool receims of contrihutions of 1Ta vear

he ezl contnaction recelvee Trom sclf cmplosed persons o Le veur
Fras L 2005 amounted 1 B2 233 72980409 and 11 was 0012 ner cont ol the
memnbers” Furnd as at twe beginnong of the vear 20050 Fven though g sepinilz
Privasiom haed heen estaklsqed o the Board to promote tas sees speetically
prosorthed hrongh the Farads” Act and stmaleges had been speoificd iv the
Action Plan, the attention naid for Uk the eond o the year 2005 Bed been st g
e fevel,

The pet conrribution received in the vear 2005 had incseased by 23008 oo
cent gy compared with the comnbuion received mothe vear 2004 and the
reasans mainly ateihated therean were receipts of conirbutions merzdsed
e 14 per coent end the pavments of conmbutons declined by |7 por cent,
Howewver, the nel contribution reeeived m the vear 2014 had decreesed by
FH.7 por conl as compared with the year 2013 The reasons attributec tor the
doecrease v that year Bad baen the pavmen ol comnribution by 447 per cent
wliich was more than the improsement of the receipls ol conirbuion by 14

per cen:.

fdr Lol return alemg with the dividend percentage of & per cent and the

(k%

it

compulsary iierest vl 3 per cenl anoounced Lo he members ol he Fund in
e year 2073 had been omderstated by R 2,002,605,667 tepresenting | per
cent from |0 per cent to 9 por cont as comparcd with the vear 2014, Since
the protit sarned in the current vear was not sutticient w announce this Liial
return, a sum of Ra 7477000 out of the peofit o the preceding vear Tad 1o
lrave used,

Board mipements sbout 14 Welfare Benefit schemes on hehalf ot s
members and the henefils ncurred o the year 2075 walusd at
Re 373852000 exoept housimy loan scheme granied  hroush a bankmy
company ard representzd abont 25 per cont oof the walue of Badaciea

beretits of that vear.
The fuir value of the investmant penttolio of ardinary shares ol enterprises
mvestad by the Boarc amounted to R 9821935118 as a1 31 Tecomber




AREEL

3015 and the value of the investment of shares as at 31 March 2006 had
decreased by |3 per conl representing Rs 1.5 10.450,765.

4.2 Vanagement Activities

Lhe fellowing abservations are made.

fay 1 Scholarship Tunds anelaimed amounting to R 2258 000
pavable to these who passed Advenced Level Fxumination
relating o the vears prior o 20011 had been shown uncer
current liahilities in Fnancial statements without paying them
cven by 30 Decomber 20050 A sum of Rs I09A26. 000
pryable for 7323 sidents who had passad Advancad [ovel
andd Year ® Scholarshep examinations in the years 2012, 2013
andd 2012 had not been pard even by 31 Mareh 2006, A sum
ol Re 876,000 oot of it had been paid for e students who ad

sasscel Advanced Level lxaminaton by O8 lune 2015,
(i) Fven though it was sulficient o have an orihinery pass o award
with a schoarship in awarding schelarships v the students whi
et passod Advanced Level Dxamingtion ¢ven half ol il
applicativns ot of forecast by the Board 1o awand scholarships
i the years 200 1- 2014 had not been teceived. and as this was
somewhal appeared a- not popular among e members.
adequate action had mut been teken to meke mware the members,
i1 The Board had granted speetal diswess loan amoumnting e [z, o0 E24.000 1o the
amployees g2 al 31 December 2015 and it was observed that luens were being
sranted lo the eificers signed as Sureties for the above loums without Laking it
crasiderstive the value of hns they praviously signed for a3 Surcties. Further,
wihen caloulating whether (he lwan installment coald e deducted within 60 per
cent Lt of the surety’s salary o granting special distress loan, il was observel
“hat the recovery af leans would orone 1o a sk (one serety conld nol pay the
loan as anlyv f had been taken e censiderslinn SO per ceat value of & momthly

mstallment ol the deblar,

4.3 Tranzactions of Contentious Nature

The Jellowing abservations are made,

y Even thoush ondy a sum of Bs 15000 should e pad nrerms of the Menagemen!
Circular No. 02:2015 dated 09 December 201 3 to the Staft of Public Corporations end
Covernmen! fully owaed compatics  in paying bonis for e vear 2015, a special
approval through the Jetter Moo PLANETHGEN201S of the Iircctor General of
Department of Pubbc Laterprises deted 17 Decerber 2015 had been obimud by the

=
-\.I"".
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Boari 1o pay two months” salary as horus for the vear 2005 But 2t was not clear
whether “1he Salary™ om0 Bied delined the basic salary or (ke salary with all
allowances. [Mowever, Uoard had paid borus amounting too Be 84 237 001 10
cployees Tor fhe vear 2003 based on twe months gross salary inclusive of all
allowances.

Legal setions had o be taken to recaver the rent incomes amcuncing to Bs.7 421 720
remamed inarrears for the pered  fom Jamosny ta fone 20015 tar the land, situated in
Mawarm Mawatha in Coonbo, belongmg w the Board and given cooan extemal
Instirute which ad defaulted the pavmenr of meothly rentals on dee date acconding
fo the sercament sinee e vesr 2075

o Dven though an incentive allvance amounting oo masimurm ol K= 28000 por

monthly was pad to employees for attendance i the incearive scherme of the Teand.
foswnt al Ha 12 200 B e been paid addiicna sy es e omavarled legve in the
vear 2003,

Uncconomic Transactions

The tollowing ahservarinns are matde.

Moodividend income had been receivad w tle Tond i the vear 2005 Tor g s aof
R A70S6095T vested in D0 per cent of ordinary shares in a private company
and a dividend amoucting o K7 87035 000 had been recerved Tor the yvear 20024
That was i very low return of 14T per cent as compared with the vestment. [
this amoust had heen vested o Governmient Sceomves malore i 302 days
witlieut a risk it could have been earned a retirn at least 6 per cent per 2nnurnm or
over Ha 28257656, Fhis Company had  inewrred & less amountng  to

R 07 4224057 in the vear 2015,

Moodividend income whetsoever had been recetvee for the wear 2015 froim 12
Compamies mowhich the averaze cost of sharss amounting 1o Ra 336000 14386
reclassilicd as Dneneial assels svailable G salz o g0 31 December 2009 and oue
of it Share Marke! price ol the shares of B compamics wineh gverase cost
amounting 10 Rs 30216605 nad decreased a5 32 percent T8 and 27 per cent as al

31 Decemher 20105 as compared with 31 December 2004

Tdentificd Losses

The fellowing observanons 2re made.
Intereat neome armounime o Bs 12 297 366 recervahic op te the year 2006

for an nvestment i debentores of a0 Plantenon Compeny had not been
recoversd by the Deard.

et loss incuwread [eom Clrecit Bunzalows of the Board inothe vears 20018 w0d

2004 had necs Be 2938 000 and Ka 1L 1EE 00 resnectively,




Rl ]

) As dhe market value ol the invesmment amommimr 10 Bs 350 420 547 made n
Uhree Lros Trosis Pends by the Board as ae Decernber 20014 had droppod by
B 20890000 az ar 31 December 205 a [oss of same amount had been
incurred by the Roard, As one of such Lnit Trust Fund was a arowth Fund., any
mzerne hisd nel Been received Tor the dnvesled money due fo nol improving the

waluz ol urls mthe vear 2003

fudi Ty compamies 0 owhic™ (ke Board Bl mvested o sum of Re.25, 227 541 had
been liguidaed. Two Companies o owhich g swm ol R 2066314 and
[z 36 640 respectively Invested had been delisted and had been shovwn woder
[Fefault Roard. Fven thongh the leeal action bad hezn taleen on rwvo Tastinetions
which were subject we liomdanen. the Boerd did ned have a specilic as-omnee
for e possibility of Tecovering the vilue of imvestmens.

el Lven though sums of Re 12074582 und Ba 7350 2539 mwvested 17 Promessory
Motes and Dehenrgres of @ proup of Compamies respectively shewld have been
realicmd v the wears 2002 and 2007, v Boand fed n heer able o get

realized such monies even by 18 Juns 20146,

4.6 Fersonnel Administralion

The lollewing observations are made,
P ekt per ormrplovee hsd heen R TER633 R 800,317 snd Rs, (005,235 in ths

wvears 2002, 20014 and 2005 respectvely and 110 had beor noproved by 09 per
cent in the vear 204 and 24 par cent 0 the vear 200 5,

iby Uhe post ol Gereral Manager ol the Boand ad resmamed vacus | sinee the venr
2003 and Depury Gienecal Manager iinvastmentsy has been appomted on acting
Rits:s over one year go without appomting 4 permanent oft.cer foe the post of
Addiviemal Gereral Maneger, Likewise, remairmmg vaeant of top mansgament
posts and eppointmant on acting basis would ke direcily aflocted wo e
cdminisirutive lunetions and Lor the supervision by top Management levels of

the Board.
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5 Accountabilicy and Good Governance

Al Corporate Plan and Action Plan

Aveording e the Acton PMan the function: sweeh oas developnent o 4 new
solbware system after sudving the Members” Accounts Management System and
the other software avaicma oxistng al prosont terecied e e Indormetion
Technology Divisicn, provision of facilities to scruticiize the balencs of mames of
reernbers throngh mlermet ar vig mosile phene and to implemeantation of plans w
prevent distress bd nol been perormmed. The Toilowome simceres which were
uniiar the mprovement of emplovess” productiviy in the Ademusiranen and
Huwran Besccmee Phie could no0 be schieved hv 37 Dacember 2005,
iy Ta smody the exating labour Teece and their skills, compari=on of the work
load gs=ianed wirh the academic labour Zorce, identilication ol siralegies
recuired o maintain e lebous Gerce ot optimurn level
a1 Introducton of 4 new partormance aporaizal scheme rectitving the lapses o
thie caisting perfisrmanee appratsal sehome sno integrate © wicn the corperate

anjectives,

h
[ %]

Internal Auddit

The lollowing observations are made,

fe) Avconbing wothe Acoom Plan ol the Board the lnramal Andir Divisioa should
perfoem the function: on monchly acccusis monlzly aod on annwel gecounls,
bdzel, Anvoal Report, Corporate Plan annually and the investizations assience
by the Chairrman of the Bosrd, Neventheiess acien had not hoon teken o that
TEEPECT

Lo Atlenien had net been patd b the internad qudit noterms of Dioancial Regulation
L3320 on the investment of funds which was tbe prime hosiness activity of the
Baard and the remirns teceved therean.

(et The stalf of the Intemmal Audit Divisicn of the Board directly tnvolved inoawdin
functioms kad been 24 and number of officers qualified in awdic were lunited Lo

thres. Accordingle the gualilied stall oo the Tntereal Audic THv=ion o a9 insiee

e
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where net assers valued at B 2210940, 122.000 remainsd available as w37

December 20015, hud nol sullicient according to its scope,

D
Lei

Budgetary Control

he fallowany obscrvations are made.

() Varancss ranging fram 20 per cent 1o 50 per cenl in 09 items of expenses as
conmpated with the budget in the vear 2015 in comsudering the expenses ware
vhserved. Salary cost imterest cost and Seilding rent and henos had increased
mver the budegsted estimate at the rate of 32 per cent, 27 per cenr. 26 per cen|
and 22 per cent respeetively. 1 he actual expenses as compared with the total

hudgeted  sspenses which were relatad the members ol the Board had

decreased by 17 por cent,

(b The Naed deposit interest weome of the HBoeara and the Interest on Custodial
Account had decreased le<s than the budgetad amoun as to be 32 and 20 por
cent respectively, Addittonzlly, U¥ mstances of variances hetween 20 par cent
and 49 por cont in Revenze Teads were abserved, The housmz loan micresl
Treasury Bills” intzezst and property meome { Leasing rent) bad decreased by
250 30 and 36 per cent respoctivelv, As there was oa signifllcanl variancs

berween the budzered and the actusl mmounts, it was observed that the Budge

had oot been made use of as an offective instrument of management cantrol,

f. Svitems and Controls

Weakneyzes in svsiems and contrels observed during the course ol mued were
brovght o the rotice of the Chairman of the Doard trom time to nme, Special

altemiion is needed morespect of the follewing arcas ol conimol,

Area of Contral Orhservarion

(a1 Crediting money e member Monies collected from employers oy the
seoinls Boarid hso ne been eredied wohoat 2
delay o the  individual  accounts of

meermioers 0 tenns of the Act,
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thy Budgermy Conrral Action had not been twren complying with
the Boogel ss there was a signiticam
variation hetween the hodwercsd meorre gnd
expenditns and the actus’ ncome and
cepenchiore of the Brard,

v btermal Audit Avzention had not heer pad e orespeet of
evilluation at Fuad investiment profiasility
al the Besrd and deplovment of qualified
and sulTicient stalT e Intermal Avael,

HM Gt Wijesinghe

Auchiter Cenernl
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Observations of the Board with regard to the Report of the Auditor General.
2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 Consolidated Financial Statements

{a)  The main business activity of the Board is investing Funds in risk bearing and risk free
investments instruments .

Accordingly, in year 1997 Rs.470,950,938 was invested in Lanka Salt Company. The
main objective of this investment was to earn either capital gain or dividends or both.
Hence, due to the nature of this investment it is classified under available for sale
{AFS) investments and disclosed in the Financial Statements. Therefore, necessity was
not arise to prepare consolidated financial statements due to this investment in
accordance with 5ri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 27.

{b}  Even though, the capital gain had not been received so far, the dividends were
received in every year. However, since year 2016 the value of this investments is
disclosed under the available for sale investments in accordance with Sri Lanka
Accounting Standard and 5ri Lanka Financial Statements Reporting Standards,

2.2.2 5rilanka Accounting Standards

{a} Srilanka Accounting Standard D1

i. Since 94% of Assets and 99% of Liahilities of the Board is represented by
Investment instruments and Member fund respectively, a necessity is not
arise to classify such assets and liabilities as current and noncurrent in
accordance with 5ri Lanka Accounting Standards. However, action will be
taken to disclose the reason for presenting financial statement based on
liquidity basis except tothe Section 60 of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No.
ol.

ii. The revaluation reserve Rs.3,155,730,470 appears in the Financial Statements
is the increased amount of market value over the purchase cost of Nawam
Mawatha Land own by the Board as per the revaluation made by Government
Valuer in 2011.

The amount of Rs.142,000,000 available in Dividend Equalization Reserve as at
31/12/2015 is made up as follows:
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(h)

{c}

{Rs.)

2010  Profit transferred to Dividend Equalization

Reserve from the profits earned 4,000,000,000
2011  Amount utilized to pay dividend {1,000,000,000)
2012 Amount utilized to pay dividend {2,000,000,000)
2013  Amount utilized to pay dividend { 343,000,000}
2014 Amount utilized to pay dividend { 515,000,000}
Balance As at 31st December 2015 142,000,000

Action will be taken to disclose the nature of above reserves in the financial state
ments of year 2016.

As per our financial statements Rs.475,069,000 of realized profits on share
investments out of financial assets available for sale which is included in reserve is
accounted as a realized profit under financial assets at fair value through profit/{Loss)
in the current year Financial Statements. Asstated inthe gquery Rs.871,626,580 is not
a loss incurred from sale of shares and it is a depreciation value when compare cost
of such shares with market value as at 31/12/2015 and this variance is shown inthe
statements of changes in equity by subtracting from asset available for sale reserves.

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard D8

Since these adjustments are relevant to operational activities of the Board, need for
such disclosure was not arised.

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 16

The assets such as office equipments, computers, vehicles etc are used for day to day
operational purpose are stated under fixed assets of the Board. The Government
Valuer is informed to revalue these fixed assets in order to account current values in
to the books and this assignment is so far not completed. Once the revaluation is
completed by Government Valuer, it is expected to change depreciation policy and
account fixed assets as per cumrent values.
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{d}  Srilanka Accounting Standard 37

i. The nature of Summerville case which has a material impact on investments is
disclosed inthe financial statements and cases onrecovery of contributions are
related to ordinary business operations, they will be treated them as per the
provision of ETF Act.

ii. This Case No. 56(98) was filed by Summerville & Co. against the Board in connection
with breach of Management agreement entered between the Company and the
Board. Even though Board persuade to defend the case in favour of the Board, the
court ordered to pay Rs.21.9 million to Summerville & Co. Accordingly, Rs.21.9
million was paid to Summerville & Co.

However, Board has filed an appeal at Supreme Court against this decision and
according to the Supreme Court order, the Company has deposited Rs.21.9 million
worth of Bank guarantee at the Court. The Case No. 5C/20/2003 filed at Supreme
Court by the Board will be called on 22nd February 2017 for examination.

{e} Srilanka Accounting Standard No.39

i. Apgreed. Due tothe adjustments made in the financial statements to comrect this
errar, the value of particular investments were increased by Rs.60,425,458.80 and
because of fair value adjustment of First Capital Company was made base on the
financial statements for the year ended 31/12/2014, the value of such investment
were understated by Rs.5,625,900. The calculation of these transaction will be
comrected in year 2016 and fair value of such investments will be disclosed in the
financial statemenits.

ii. Theintention of investing in these 03 unit trust were to sell in the market and also
these investments are listed and could be sold at the market at any time, such
investments have been classified under investments held for Trading.

(f} Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 40

In year 2015 Government Valuer was informed in year 2015 to revalue the land
owned by Board which is situated at Mawam Mawatha. However, since this valuation
report not yet been received, it was unable to show fair value in the financial state
ments.

2.2.3 Accounting Polices

{a) In year 2014, the listed share portfolio of the Board was re-classified as per Board
decision. Accordingly, division of portfolio was made as 30% for Trading portfolio with
an intensionfor re-selling within a short period and 70% for long term portfolio. for
re-selling within a short period and 70% for long term portfolio. Even though the
portfolio had been classified as Held for Trading and Available for Sale in accordance
with 5ri Lankan Accounting Standards, the Board of Directors has decided to eam
profits by selling such shares imespective of the classification as a strategy if the
market prices of the shares unexpectedly increases towards in favour of the Board.
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(b}

2.2.4

(a)

(b}

(c)

In accordance with Srilankan Accounting Standards, the basis of classification and
presentation of investment in financial statements is not restricted for selling such
investments and earn profits at right time. The prime objective of the Board is to
earn optimum profits on its investments and the Board acts accordingly on such
favourable conditions.

When classified part of total portfolio under Available for Sale (AFS) investments as
per the Board paper presented on 21st March 2013, the factors such as
administration structure of the company, expected growth, dividend policy, the com
pany’s ability to expand in their industry etc were considered for such classification.

Therefore, we cannot agree with statement “No active Market” in your ohservation
quoted as reason for re-classified 70%of Board’s share portfolio for the year ended
2141242014,

Accounting Deficiencies

For year 2015, Rs.6,013,817,000 was credited to the members accounts and
deducted from the profit available for appropriation as done in previous years.
However, noimpact for overall financial results of the Board from this presentation
and it is expected to make necessary adjustments subsequently after study is made.

The amount of Rs.121.882,827 stated in Tax Computation is a payment adjustment
made on Treasury bonds prior to year 2006 and equal portion of such unrealized
refund is set off against tax liability of each year. Accordingly, it is expected to set off
this amount against tax liability in subsequent years.

This under provision of depreciation had been taken place during the time of data -
entry to the computer package of fixed assets. Action will be taken to resolve
technical issues of the package and calculate correct depreciation amount once the
revaluation process is completed.
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2.2.5 Unexplained Differences

2.3

(2)

(b}

At present, a detail Tax computation is presented with financial statements and as
mentioned in the audit query, a tax reconciliation will be presented from year 2016.

Accounts Receivables and Payable

Former Addl. General Manager suddenly resigned from the post without prior notice
and it was calculated his dues to the Board which was Rs. 508,789/ Then he was
informed to settle same and in response he paid a part and then the total due was Rs.
425,812/-. We will take action against the guarantors of the dues if he is not settled in
full.

Retained death benefits account balance is Rs.9,914,375.85 to 836 claimants as at
31st December 2015,

There are instances where more than one claimant exists or determined to share the
unclaimed balance of a decreased member. Since, all such claimants have not
submitted their claims at one instance and some of them have failed to submit
adequate documents and prevalence of long term unsettled testamentary cases.
Therefore, share of claim entitled to others would be released while retaining the
unclaimed balance in the accounts. Hence, above balance has remained in these
accounts as usual. 5 claims has been identified and Rs.171,817.88 had been paid
since, January 2016 to 2016/06/30. Outstanding liability balance is Rs.9,742 ,558.97
for 831 claimants as at 30/06/20165.

Returned benefit account balance is Rs. 15,304,642, 94 relevant for 1233 claimants as
at 3141242015 . This account reflects the value of the refunds which had been directly
sent to the bank accounts of the claimants and returned by the banks due to non
availability of adequate details of such claimants. Arrangements have been made to
inform to the claimants and action would be taken to repay these money to the
relevant claimants on receipt of correct information. It had been identified 91
claimants since January 2016 to 2016/06/30. And Rs.2,889,777.69 has been paid.
Cutstanding liability balance is Rs.12,414,865.25 for 1142 claimants as at 30/06/2016.
Benefit applicants are being made aware through regional offices and mobile services
and amount of benefits are being paid to the relevant members.

Balance of returned benefit {cheque) account as at 31/12/2015 is Rs.4,753,869.45 for
965 claimants. Relevant benefit value would be sent by cheques through registered
post to the benefit applicants, who do not have access to the slip transaction system,
If any cheque is retumed from above, they would be directed to the relevant bank.
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(c}

2.4

Even if cheque were sent, but not realized, those values are reflected in the above
account. Accordingly Rs.83,946.96 has been paid to 7 claimants, since January 2016
to 30/06/2016. Outstanding liakility balance is Rs.4,669,922.49 for 956 claimants as
at 30/06/2014.

Benefit applicants are being made aware through regional offices and mobile services
and amount of benefits are being paid to the relevant members.

Contribution not credited to the Member Accounts

QOut of the contribution received since 1981 to 31/12/2014 the amount which was not
credited to the individual member accounts as at 02/05/2016 is Rs.2,358,393,635.
From this amount Rs.271,142 523 has been credited to the individual member
accounts as at 31/08/2016 and Rs.2,097,251,113 to be credited to the individual
member accounts as at 31/08/2016.

Mew unit called *Special Accounts Clearing Unit” was established on 10th February
2016 to update all arrears work in Member Account Section.

Non compliance with Laws, Regulations and Management decision.

Shop and Office Employees’ Act No. 19 of 1954

From the inception 42 days of leave had been granted to the employees of the Board
on an annual basis. It was advised not to reduce same upto 21 days as per Shop and
Employees Act as it will effect adversely to the industrial peace. However, the payment
of overtime is made as perrules and regulations of the Shop and Office Act.

Financial Requlation of Democratic, Socialist, Republic of Sri Lanko
i ial R gtion 369

According to the bank reconciliation of account No.1850001111 of people’s bank,
amount of 9 unrealized cheque is Rs.245,450.21 as at 31/12/2015. Out of this amount
related to 7 cheques that is Rs.224,836.78 has been transfer to return benefits
accountsin May 2016. But is in the process of indentifying individual bank details
for correct payment. Remaining 2 cheques (relevant amount is Rs.20,613.43) to be
transfer to the correct account after collecting.

Reflecting in Bank Reconciliation relating to Peoples Bank A/C Mo, 1650001111 nine
cheque total amount is Rs.245,450.21 as at 31/12/2015. Out of this seven chegque
amountsis Rs.224,836.78 has been transfer to retumed benefit account in May 2016
to be collect the correct bank account details from the member and to be pay.
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2.5

e |
(a)
(b}

(c}

3.2
(a)
(b}
(c)

3.3.

Transactions not supported by adequate Authority
It was mentioned in the Board paper submitted on 27/05/1994 that all inclusive
salary was considered for staff distress loans and on that basis amount of staff loan

was calculated.

Furthermore, approval from General Treasury was obtained for staff loan scheme.

Financial Reviews

Financial Result
Agreed

Agreed. This situation is occurred due to the declining interest rate on fixed income
securities eventhough about 13% return was eamed on share market investments in
yvear 2015. The Board follows firm policies on expenditure and this situation will be
recovered when interest rates of fixed income securities increases.

Dwring the yvear under review increase of certain expenditure such as staff salary hike
by Rs, 10,000 as proposed by the government, increase of number of year 05
scholarships when compared to year 2014 and increase of Heart Surgery payment
from Rs.150,000 to Rs. 300,000 under member benefits were mainly contributed to
increase expenditure when compared toyear 2014.

Analytical Financial Review

Agreed
Agreed
Eventhough members fund has grown at this level the declining trend in interest rates

exist for government securities which represents about 90% of total portfolio was the
main impact for this situation.

Legal Events Instituted by the Board

Agreed. In certain instances where defaulting of investments, interest income,
contributions and surcharges, the legal actions need to be taken if no other

alternatives are available to recover them.
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3.4  Working Capital Management

Action has been taken 1o transfer from excess fund in two commercial bank
accounts No.22220509201 and 2220509202 have been transferred to peoples Bank
AT MD.119-100143693249 in May 2016.

4, Operating Review

41 Performance
{a) MNoted

(b} 62% of the Labour market of 5ri Lanka is represented by informal sector which mainly
consists of domestic, small scale and medium scale business. Amangements have
already been made toimplement a new process in order to enroll 2 large number of
members through inspection of institutions with the technical assistance of ILO and
the support of the Ministry of National Policies and Economic Affairs.

Enhancement of the self employed and migrant workers sector has already launching
new programme with the coordination of relevant Govemment and Semi
Government Institutions to enroll maximum members

{c} A continuous growth is reflected in contribution collection from year 2013 toyear
2015 and due to an increase in claims refunds during year 2014 this varance had
been taken place. Therefore agreed with your chservation.

{d) In a particular year if the profits eamed during that year is not sufficient to pay certain
return the carried forward profits could be utilized for such purpose. Therefore, an
adjustment had been done accordingly.

(e} Agreed with the matters given in the audit report.
{f) The value of the share Investment Portfolio has been deteriorated in this nature that

due to continuous volatile condition existed in the market since 2015. It is expected
this condition will be recovered once the market condition become stable.

Employees’ Trust Fund Board | Annual Report 2015




4.2

(a)

(b.}

4.3

(a)

(b}

(c)

Management Activities

i. Returned Year 5 scholarship account balance is Rs.2,258,385 as at 31/12/2015.
It had been identified since January 2016 to 31/08/2016, and Rs.48,598.49
has been paid. Qutstanding liakility balance is Rs.2,209,786.51 as at
31/08/2016. Information is to be collected from relevant scholarship holders
and arrange to pay in future.

ii. Mumbers of awarded scholarships are always lower than the allocated amount
in event of year five scholarship and financial grant for GCE {A/L}, because
candidates do not fulfill the required qualification.

All the Employers and Members are being made aware through Regional
Offices and mobile service regarding existing welfare benefits but, are not
received benefit applications upto the budget quantity.

It is not considered the number of guarantees for staff loans signed by the loan
applicant when approving hisf/her application of the loan. If the staff loan is default
guaran tors are bound to pay same together or an individual basis. Therefore there is
no financial damage to the Board.

Transactions of Continous Nature

Employees are paid two months bonus after obtaining formal approval considering
the definition of the salary in the Establishment Code. Further the Establishment Code
defines the salary as the consolidated salary which comprises with all allowances. Also
employees are paid the Bonus on that basis for a long period of time.

Considering the practical difficulties for not paying regular monthly rentals of the Car
Park highlighted in his request he was given a grace period to regularize the duges.
However, when payment is made arrears of the rentals are recovered but current
monthly rentals are default. On that basis the default amount was increased and
therefore, the Management terminated the agreement and acquired the land to the
Board on July, 2015 and legal action against Asset Property (Pvt) Ltd was taken.

If annual leave is not authorized to avail due to requirement of the service of the
employees such leave is paid. On that basis balance annual leave of the employees are
paid.
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4.4

(a)

(b}

4.5

(a)

There is a criteria for attendance in the monthly incentive scheme for which Rs. 2500/-
is allocated. If an employee exceeds 05 days leave per month, the total amount of Rs.
2500/-is deducted. The scheme is for motivation for improvement of the performance.

Uneconomical Transactions

In 1997 and Rs 470mn had been paid to the General Treasury to purchase 90% stake
of the company while the balance 10% of the shares are owned by the staff of the
Lanka Salt Ltd.

The company had paid Rs 123 as dividends to the Board since inception of the
ownership. The Met asset value as of end of 2014 has been increased to Rs 612
millions which is Rs 142 millions appreciation against the investment value of Rs 470
millions.

Eventhough it was stated that dividends have not been received from 13 companies
during the year 2015. Asum of Rs.861,070 has been received from Valible One
Company as dividends.

Though it was pointed out that market price in shares of 04 companies have declined

from 10% to 37%, the share market is highly sensitive and depend on factors such as

economic condition of the country, tax policy, political policies, foreign reserves,

foreign currency policy, purchasing power of the people etc. However, it is our

expectationto earn higher capital gains when share prices of above companies are
increased.

Identified Losses

Rs.15.0 Million was invested in Debentures of Elkaduwa Plantations Ltd (EPL) on a
Cabinet Directive in 1994, Interest of Rs.12,291,555.15 05 in amrears on the abowve
Rs.15.0 Million.

EFL had agreed to settle the interest amrears in monthly installments of Rs.500,000/=
settled only upto the November 2012, A Letter of Demand was sent to EPL on
04/08/2014 demanding to settle the dues. This was informed to General Treasury by
our letter dated 16/06/2015. Inresponse to our letter EPL requested a grace period to
settle the amrears and informed that they have planned to discuss this matter with
Secretary, Ministry of Plantation Industries.

Sent a letter to Secretary, Ministry of National Policies and Economic Affairs on
17/11/2015 with a copy to Director General, Public Enterprises General Treasury,
requesting assistance to recover the dues from General Treasury as this investment
was made on a government directive.
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In response to our letter, Secretary, Ministry of National Policies & Economic Affairs
has written to Chairman/ Managing Director, EPL on 0941242015 with a copy of ETFB
requesting their plan for the settlement of interest arrears.

EPL has requested further grace period to settle arrears as they have not overcome
their financial difficulties still as per their letter dated 10/08/2015.

(b} The main objective of constructing a Holiday Bungalow was staff welfare. Therefore,
it is made available for the staff at concessionary rates. In addition to this Bungalow
is given for third parties at different rate. Therefore, this Holiday Bungalow is not
running for the main purpose of eaming profits.

{c) Due to the unfavourable condition existed in the market during year 2015, the prices
of this units had declined. However, it is expected to earn profits by selling these
units once the market is recovered.

{d} Since no final verdict has been issued for the 02 companies under liquidation, the
certainty of recovering of these investments cannot be confirmed.

(e} Promissory notes of Rs.12,174,382.19 s in Vanik Incorporation.

The arrears of promissory notes issued in lieu of arrears of
Debenture interest of Rs.15.0 Mn. & 11,262,382.19

The value of promissory notes issued in lieu of interest
relevant to the year 2001 on the

debentures issued on 10/12/1997 = 912,000.00

12,174,382.19

Rs.11.262,382.19

The interest rate for Rs.15.0 Mn. Promissory notes was 15.50%. The installment
payments of Capital & Interest were stopped in July 2002. Rs.11,262,382.19 s in
arrears.

Hs.912,000.00

The rate of debentures issued to ETFB on 10/12/1997 by Vanik Incorporation was
Rs.7,450,250. Interest was paid for the period from 1997 to0 2000. The interest install
ment for 2001 was not paid and converted to a Promissory Note. Vanik Incorporation
has failed to settle the promissory Mote.
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4.6

(a)

(b}

31

The value of the debentures issued by Vanik to ETFE was Rs.7,450,000 (Par Value
Rs.6,080,000). Although the due date of the last installment after the restructure of
payments was 10/12/2011, Vanik Incorporation has not settled the due amounts.

Since there is Legal process against Vanik Incorporation, we have to wait until finalize
the court decision to take action torecover the amrears.

Present position of the Liquidation petition against the Vanik
Incorporation Ltd

Winding-up application was filed against the Vanik Incorporation Limited. liquidation
order delivered and against the said order two appeal applications filed in Civil Appeal
High Court and Supreme Court. The Two appeal petitions were dismissed, again
Provincial Development Bank filed appeal petition against the said order in Civil
Appeal High Court numbered WP/HCCA/270/08 (F). Now this case will be called on
22nd September 2016 for judgments.

Personnel Administration

Employee expenses are increased due to correcting salary anomalies created at the
time of absorption of employees into the grades of the posts based on approved
Scheme of Recruitment on 01.05.2013 as per the instructions in the 30/ 2006 circular
issued by the Dept. of Management Services.

The General Manager Post could not be filled due to a Labour Tribunal case filed by
ir. E H P De Silva, former General Manager. However, as the case was concluded on
July 2015 the Board will take steps to fill the posts of General Manager and Addl.
General Manager.

Accountability and Good Governance

Corporate Plan and Action Plan

An action plan has been prepared with the assistance of computer consultant for this
purpose and it is decided to commence this work during year 2015,

It has been taken and initiatives to improve the capacities of the employees based on
a report on productivity from National Productivity Secretariat. Further The National
Productivity Secretariat will involve in developing systems and processes to improve
efficiency which will be leading to better service to the members.
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ii. As the results of the above (1) a new system for performance appraisal will
also be introduced

5.2  Internal Audit

(a)

Mew Corporate Plan and Action plan has re-prepared in 2016 in technically
sound manner with board objective thus internal audit is complying with it.

Also draft annual report with annual final accounts will be submitted to the internal
audit with effect from 2016.

Following pre-audit has been done during the year 2015 as per the requirement of
management

{i} Benefit Claims pre-audit

Momal Benefits 95,943
Death Benefits 2,654
10L Bl
Heart Surgery 538
Permanent Disability 63
Automatic Life Insurance 947
Shramasuwa 1,636
Kidney Transplant 18
Scholarships —Grade V & AfL 9,562
Staff Medical Reimbursements 13,958
127,020
{ii} Staff Final Payments 17 Nos

{iii} iWaonthly Staff Incentive Percentage
{iv) Housing Loan Reimbursements
{w) Annual Staff Bonus — 2015

{vi}  Annual Leave Encashment —2014

In addition, following post audits has been done

Contributions and surcharge income 2014
Unrealized Money QOrders

Investment in Units of Unit Trusts

Journal Entries in the MASS System
Cffice Building Rent

L e e
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(b}
()

5.3

(a)

(b}

&. Procurement and repair of office air conditioning machines

Disposal of Fiked Assets

3. System and Control weaknesses observed in pre-audit has been
reported from time to time.

=

All above reports has been submitted to the Auditor General. Further all inquiry
Report which assign by the Chairman including investment and procurement has been
submitted to the Chairman.

A reply had been given under 5.2 {3}

MNew organization chart as per the scope and staff requirements of internal audit
division has been prepared and included in 2016-2020 Corporate Plan thus action
will be taken to staff promotion and recruitment of suitably qualified staff.

Budgetary Control

In year 2015, government has approved to pay Rs.10,000 allowance to all

govern ment and semi-government employees. Since this payment is adjusted to the
staff salaries, payment of salary arrears to a reinstated employee who was interdicted,
the actual salaries and bonus exceeded the budgeted expenditure.

It was needed to expand and modernized existing regional office network in order to
expand the services provide to members. Accordingly shifting of some of regional
offices to the locations which have more spaces, travelling facilities etc and payment
of Rs.9.6 million as rent arrears in year 2015 for the period from 2007 to 2015 due to
Department of Labour where ETF Board head office is located, the actual building rent
cost exceeded the budgeted expenditure.

Base on the investment opportunities available in the market, interest rates, funds
availability, our intention is to invest fund in the most favourable investments in
order to earn higher interest income to meet forecasted income targets without
necessarily confirmed to the forecast investment plan. Accordingly in year 2015, the
actual income was exceeded by 65.5% over the Budgeted income.

The rent income was declined due to the discontinuations of renting out of Nawam
Mawatha property since August 2015. Presently Car Park is running by ETF Board
itself at a profit which is higher than rent income engaging own staff.
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6. Systems and Caontrols

(a) Contribution received since 1981 to 2014 Rs.135,799 million. From this amount
Rs5.133,682 million has been credited to the individual member accounts as at
31/08/2016. It is 98.5% from the total contribution. Accordingly, 1.5% contribution
are to be credited to member accounts as at 31/08/2016 (Amount is Rs.2,097 million}

Current year contribution received is Rs.18,087 million and Rs.15,415 million has
been credited to the member accounts as at 31/08/2016. It is 85% from total
contribution. Accordingly, 15% of contribution to be credited to the member accounts
a5 at 31/08/2016 (amount is Rs.2,071 million)

(b} As per the financial statements of the Board, the actual member related expenses
were dropped by only 17% when compared to the Budget. Accordingly there is no
major variance noted in between actual and budgeted expenditure and action will be
taken to grant more benefits to the members by increasing awareness among them
further.

(ch Mew Organization Chart as per the scope and staff requirements of Internal Audit
Division has been prepared and included in 2016-2020 Corporate Plan thus action
will be taken to staff promotion and recruitment of suitably qualified staff.

o
}x}\.“m’f" e —

Mahiﬁaa tMadihahews
Chairman / Chief Executive Cfficer
Employees’ Trust Fund Board.
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